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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
(“ICBC Macau”) is a group member of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited (“ICBC”), which holds
its 89.33% interest as at the end of 2010.

ICBC Macau is the result of a merger between the former
Seng Heng Bank Limited (“SHB”) and ICBC Macau Branch
(“Macau Branch”), and was renamed as Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited (“ICBC Macau”)
upon completion of the acquisition.

History

SHB was incorporated in Macau in 1972, and had a history
of 37 years of service to the local customers and facilitating
growth in Macau. On 28 January 2008, ICBC completed to
acquire 79.93% shareholdings in the former SHB, and which
became a member of the ICBC group.

Macau Branch was established in May 2003 as one of ICBC’s
overseas branches. Since its entrance to the Macau market,
the branch had been growing at a rapid pace.

On 11 July 2009, ICBC first transferred to SHB all assets,
rights and obligations of Macau Branch with additional cash
capital. After which SHB was officially renamed as Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited (“ICBC
Macau”), and ICBC succeeded in brand unification and
complementary advantages in Macau.

On 23 August 2010, ICBC Macau received another
capital increase by shareholders. As such, the Bank has
been operating with stronger business capacity and more
solid finance strength with incessantly deepening its
risk management at all levels, and advancing in network
construction, business innovation, process optimization,
and internal administration, the Bank has made significant
progresses and also in building its staff and corporate culture.
This resulted in a leap in the market standing and influence
for the Bank and contributed to its leading position on
business scale and performance in the industry.

At the end of 2010, ICBC Macau had 3 subsidiaries, 13
branches, 4 Wealth Management Centers, 3 Securities Trading
Centers, 1 Peony Credit Card VIP Service Center, 1 SME
Service Center, and a network of 100 ATMs located across
Macau.
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Products and Services

ICBC Macau leverages its parent company’s signature
strength, massive services network, cutting-edge technology,
and excellent products of its foreign institutions to offer
plenty of financial services to its clients:

Corporate loan, revolving loan, banking syndicated loan,
project loan, construction loan, trade financing and letter of
credit or letter of guarantee, operating loan, mortgage loan,
car loan, education loan, entrusted loan and M&A financing;

Current deposit, savings deposit, time deposit, RMB deposit,
redeemable time deposit, equity-linked notes, diversified
services of Elite Club Account;

Securities trading, funds agency, insurance agency, bond
investment, foreign exchange investment, precious metal
trading, wages distribution agency, receiving and paying
agency, international settlement, remittance, currencies
conversion, e-banking and card business services;

Debt restructuring, financial consultancy, assets management,
investment portfolio management, pension fund management
and its consultancy services.

Subsidiaries

ICBC Macau has 3 wholly-owned subsidiaries: ICBC (Macau)
Capital Limited, ICBC (Macau) Pension Fund Management
Company Limited and Seng Heng Development Company
Limited.

ICBC (Macau) Capital Limited announced name change on 27
May 2009, which was formerly known as Seng Heng Capital
Asia Limited established in May 1998 with a registered
capital of MOP50 million. This subsidiary is committed to
providing fund management services and tailored long-term
investment strategy consultancy services to institutions and
individual clients in Macau.
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ICBC (Macau) Pension Fund Management Company Limited
was renamed on 27 May 2009, which was formerly known
as Seng Heng Pension Fund Management Company Limited
established in June 2003 with a registered capital of MOP30
million. This subsidiary is the first and only professional
pension fund management company approved under the
corresponding legislations. In line with the regulations on
pension fund management enacted by the Macau government,
the subsidiary provides a wide range of services.

Incorporated in Hong Kong on 10 January 1997, Seng Heng
Development Company Limited holds property and specializes
in the financial and investment market research.

ICBC Macau takes up economic and social responsibilities
in a way of organic unity. It has established an image of
a responsible leading bank in Macau through its support
of economic and social developments, environmental and
resources protection, and participation in social welfare

activities.

TR TERITROAGRAT
INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL
BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

THETERT GRF) ROBRAFE
INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL
BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

100% 100% 100%
. . _ THRORM)RARES . =
> Neal JL> 157aN 7D " 2 N ]
(MACAU) ICBC (MACAU) PENSION FUND SENG HENG DEVELOPMENT
CAPITAL LIMITED COMPANY LIMITED

MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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The Banker | « #8475 The Banker
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_‘.-' The Bank of the Year 2010 Macau (Award for the 10th consecutive year)

bk < P e L]
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The Best Emerging Market Bank in Macau 2010 (Award for the 7th
consecutive year)

Giofkee

W o AR 4@k World Finance
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2[]1{:] The Best Banking Group in Macau 2010 (Award for the 2nd consecutive
=]
year)
r . « W% The Asset
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The Best Syndicated Loan in The Asset Asian Awards

- B cup

H
| TR ARV LI 7 AT
2010 Innovative Award-IC Credit Card (Hong Kong and Macau Award)

- FERE cup

TR AR LR [ R R B (B P AR )
2010 Outstanding Acquiring Performance (Acquiring Volume)-Gold Award

in Macau
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2010 Outstanding Acquiring Performance (Pos Number)-Gold Award in

' Macau
- W SR CUP

TR A R [ b e B R R RS
2010 Largest Card Number-Silver Award in Macau

- # %% MASTER
[ T
The Best Co-brand Card Program Launched In 2010 in Macau

*ICBC China Telecom Co-brand Master Card*

- # )% MASTER
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The Highest Growth Rate In 2010 Number of Open Cards In Macau

« #ERE VISA

“RBI R R R R R RN R A
2009/2010 Largest Card Growth in Macau

A

' . 4ERE VISA

2 | W o ST AU RSN SRR 6
2009/2010 Highest Average Card Spend (Gold Card) in Macau

v
v
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The directors of the Bank during the year were:

Mr. Zhu Xiaoping
Mr. Shen Xiaoqi
Mr. Huen Wing Ming, Patrick
Mr. Liu Yagan
Mr. Tong Chi Kin
Mr. Wu Zongxuan
(resigned on 25 March 2010)
Ms. Nie Changwen
Mr. Ji Jingyu
(appointed on 25 March 2010)

SINGLE SUPERVISOR
CSC & Associados — Sociedade de Auditores
(represented by Mr. Chui Sai Cheong)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Li Zhigang

(resigned on 26 March 2010)
Mr. Zheng Kai

(appointed on 26 March 2010)

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young

LEGAL ADVISERS
Dr. Jorge Neto Valente
Dr. Saldanha Henrique
Dr. Leong Hon Man

REGISTERED OFFICE
18/F, ICBC Tower

Macau Landmark

555, Avenida da Amizade, Macau

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Chairman, Managing Director & Executive Director

Mr. Zhu Xiaoping

Vice-Chairman, CEO & Executive Director
Mr. Shen Xiaoqi
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) e e AT g Vice-Chairman & Executive Director
K B Se A Mr. Huen Wing Ming, Patrick
T WAl 3 Deputy CEOs
L9 5 Mr. Cheng Wing Fai, Patrick
GBS Mr. Liu Kwok Tai, Stephen
o fkt: Ms. Lin Zi
SRS Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie
8 I 5 A (G e 4 ) Mr. Li Zhigang (also Chief Risk Officer)
B Chief Officers
TRER IR (R EHE) Mr. Cheung Kam Man, Tony (Chief Investment Officer)
BRIERS 2t (B ) Ms. Chen Xiaoling, Emma (Chief Financial Officer)
BR LR Je A (P A ) Mr. Chen Limao (Chief Operations Officer)
RER I e A (F BB ) Mr. Chan Kam Lun, Felix (Chief Retail Banking Officer)

(R ZF—FEZH I/ HZAE) (appointed on 8 February 2010)
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We continue to be prudent with our business. Everyone
in the ICBC Macau family working together, with
professional expertise, advanced technology and highly
efficient service, pursues for the steady growth for the
value of both our customers and shareholders. We take
initiatives to assume more social responsibilities and strive

for the leading position in the Macau banking industory.

AERERA] Profit for the Year

T SRR 2 Shareholder’s Equity
¥ EE A Total Assets
BEBA Operating Income
S Operating Expenses

H B TR 488 A Wl 2 7 A Operating Profit before Impairment
| Losses
B AR Charge for impairment losses on

loans, advances and trade bills

7R B 0l o R 5 25 el Repurchase cost of Lehman Brothers

Minibonds
A AT &R Profit before Tax
B Income Tax Expense

SERER A Profit for the Year

Wh: : WM B MOP T #5C MOP million

B Increase/
(P& Decrease)

2009 2010 H4 %
459 641 40%
3,633 6,597 82%
51,822 71,645 38%
B Increase/

(3> Decrease)

2009 2010 Bl %
918 1,147 25%
(340) (387) 14%
578 760 31%
(31) (37) 19%
(18) 0 (100%)
528 724 37%
(70) (83) 19%
459 641 40%
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Key Figures for 2010

Along with the stabilization and recovery of the global and
Macau economies, we recorded better operating results with
the profit after tax increased by 40% to MOP641 million.
Shareholders’ equity increased by 82% to MOP6,597 million.
Loans and advances to customers increased by 29% to

MOP47,723 million.

Deposits from customers increased by 33% to MOP56,484
million.

Total assets increased by 38% to MOP71,645 million.

Five-Year Summary

Wifz - LM% E #5C MOP million

AR ZF J SR B SRA T
Profit after Tax Former Seng Heng Bank 312 326
JER AT 274 459 641 14%
Former ICBC Macau Branch 62 44
% SR T Bk JE R B SR AT
Loans and Advances to Former Seng Heng Bank 9,745 10,435
Customers JEW ™ 4347 24,057 37,116 47,723 43%
Former ICBC Macau Branch 1,539 6,179
%P AER J5 ok BLERA T
Deposits from Customers Former Seng Heng Bank 22,587 26,950
JER T 36,742 42,620 56,484 21%
Former ICBC Macau Branch 4,075 5,181
A fE J5 SR BSR4 T
Total Assets Former Seng Heng Bank 25,387 29,365
BRI T 40,423 51,822 71,645 24%

Former ICBC Macau Branch

4,942 7,668

* CAGR=4FH A HEH Compound Annual Growth Rate
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Profit after Tax Deposits from Customers
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2010 is the first full complete business year for Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited (“ICBC
Macau”) ever since its establishment. ICBC Macau
harmonizes with the reform and development of our great
mother country and is blessed with the utmost support of the
parent company. The Bank is always taking the scientific
development perspective as guidance, seizing to the full upon
the integration tendency of Guangdong, Hong Kong and
Macau and enjoying the unique advantage in the effective
use of Macau as a platform for interaction between China and
Portugal. With the business strategy of “Basing on Macau,
Radiating to the Mainland, Expanding in Neighbouring
Regions and Extending to Portuguese-speaking Countries”,
adjacent areas of Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macau,
Southeast Asia regions, and the Portuguese countries serve
as the major business development sectors. The Bank makes
the best of its full license operation, acts in accordance with
the overall deployment of the holding company’s overseas
business strategy, and centers upon improving brand image
and competitiveness. Gaining a foothold locally, exploring
the area nearby, strengthening interactions, and making
progress in trying to be a supreme bank in Macau, the Bank
productively achieved diverse and fast business growth.

As at the end of 2010, total assets of the Bank reached
MOP71.6 billion, surged MOP19.8 billion from the beginning
of the year; deposits balances (including CD) totaled
MOPS58 billion, grew MOP15.4 billion; loan outstanding
was MOP47.7 billion, rose MOP10.6 billion; profit after
tax was MOP641 million. With the NPL outstanding and
ratio continued to maintain at a relatively low level and loan
provisions fully provided, the risk resistance capacity of the
bank was significantly enhanced; while ROA of 1.04%, ROE
of 12.88%, and income ratio of 29.17%.

The Bank continues to sustain promising operation
and performance, winning favorable reputation from
internationally renowned financial media. The Bank was
awarded the 2010 Best Bank in Macau by both the US
magazine Global Finance and the British magazine The
Banker; Moody’s Investors Service assigned ICBC Macau a
rating outlook of “stable”, Long-term and Short-term Local
and Foreign Currency Deposits Ratings of “A3/P-2”, Bank
Financial Strength of “D+”, which was the first assessment
ever that Moody’s has done to an institution in Macau; Fitch
Ratings finished successfully the annual ratings for the Bank,
giving an Individual Rating of “C” and upgrading the Support
Rating from “2” to “1”.

We see “Framework Agreement on Guangdong-Macao
Co-operation” as the development opportunity. While coping
with the government’s administration arrangements, taking
the scientific development perspective as guidance, and
acting according to the overall deployment of the holding
company’s overseas business strategy, we further step up the
fast coordinated growth of assets, liabilities and intermediary
businesses and underpin the overall risk management to a
greater extent. The Bank continues to maintain and expand its
leading advantage in key businesses, works hard to build its
core competitiveness and form the best local bank in Macau.
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and Regulatory Environments

In 2010, benefiting from the economic stimulus policies
and large rescue plans, launched by governments around
the world earlier on to respond to the financial crisis, the
main economic index of developed economies had been
showing signs of recovery. Due to a rather big difference with
the emerging economies, there were, however, increasing
conflicts of monetary policies; and some Euro countries were
still facing severe sovereign debt issues, as well as local
geopolitical risks, which all added uncertainties to the global
In 2010,

was particularly volatile, which was reflected by wide shocks

economy recovery. international financial market
on currency exchange rates, higher commodity prices, and

large fluctuations in the stock market.

As the global economy bottomed out and stabilized, and
the Mainland economy rebounded, fast economic growth
was observed in Macau. GDP in the first three quarters of
2010 all logged double-digit growth rates in real terms. This
upward drive primarily came from the tourism industry,
private consumption, government expenditure and services
exports. In addition, visitor arrivals and property sales
returned to the pre-crisis level. With the implementation of
“The Outline of the Plan for the Reform and Development
of the Pearl River Delta (2008-2020)” and Macau being
considered in the country’s 12th Five-Year Plan for the first
time ever, integration within the metropolitan circle of the
Pearl River Delta area is inevitably accelerating. Large-scale
infrastructure projects and major local projects have been
launched. Investments will be one of the key motivations

accountable for the development of the Macau economy.

Benefited from Macau and the global economic upturn in
2010, the Macau banking industry has been holding up a
good atmosphere in its market operation, showing an overall
steady growth. In 2010, the regulatory authorities introduced
guidelines on banks’ wealth management, asset management,
mortgage loan businesses, and so on, and adopted a series of
major policy measures for the future implementation of the
New Basel Capital Accord. These are both challenges and
opportunities for the development of the banking industry in
the future. On the whole, the outlook of the financial service
market in Macau is more optimistic when compared with last

year.
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Corporate Banking & Investing Banking

The Bank is active in scaling up its corporate banking and
investment banking businesses including syndicated loans,
project financing, international loans, trade financing,
tranditional commercial loan and SME finance, etc. The
Bank is dedicated to innovating its financial products and
services. In 2010, the Bank, outperforming in the syndicated
loan market, took the lead in conducting a number of sizable
projects in Macau. In particular, the Bank was awarded the
2010 Best Syndicated Loan by The Asset Magazine of Hong
Kong for jointly arranged the syndicated loan of the well-
known enterprise in Macau. The Bank significantly grew in
brand recognition and social reputation in the target markets
such as Hong Kong and Macau, taking steps to be among
the leadership in the local mainstream credit market. The
Bank also put efforts in building a trademark of internal
and external linkage of comprehensive and highly effective
business, proving to be a great partner for Chinese-funded
enterprises in Macau. In 2010, the Bank recorded sharp
increases in many of the businesses. It provides services for
customers across Asia, Africa and Oceania and other regions,
and demonstrates diversified developments in both income
structure and customer portfolio.

Retail Banking & Wealth Management

In 2010, ICBC Macau assertively expanded its retail banking
business. Also, the Bank carried out a selection of channel
management strategy, increased resources input; optimized
network layout, perfected supporting functions, further
improved service quality, and advanced its mechanism
innovation.

While branching out its financial services channel effectively
and refining the customer layered service system, the Bank
emphasizes on personal wealth management products
innovation, popularizing privileged products and boosting
channels construction exclusively for wealth management,
constantly enriching its service areas.

The Bank assigns specialized wealth managers for its
medium- and high-end customers. With the knowledge and
techniques of its professional management teams, the Bank
offers tailored finance and investment schemes. At the end of
2010, the Bank already had 4 Wealth Management Centers
in operation, providing one-on-one financial planning and
investment management for high-end and private banking
customers, realizing a value storage or appreciation for their
wealth.
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Securities Trading Centers of the bank are equipped with
technologically advanced and powerful stock trading system,
and offer convenient investment service to customers. In
2010, the Bank experienced notably larger transaction volume

and much greater income from stock trading services.

In response to the Macau SAR Government’s motivating
the development of SMEs, the Bank pushes for appropriate
economic diversification policy measures, setting up SME
service center to make available better specialized services

and recorded increases in the related financing business.

Financial Market & Fund Management

The Bank is aggressive while prudent with its participation
in the financial markets, including money market, bond,
derivatives and precious metal market. Widely utilizing such
market tools as exchange rates, interest rates, commodity
prices, and precious metals, etc., the Bank carries out various
types of proprietary trading and trading for customers,
avoids and manages market risk in an unstable economic
environment. In 2010, the Bank had no difficulty to stay
active and excellent in the local market of RMB bonds and

derivatives from exchange rates of RMB against the dollar.

The Bank sustains sound development in its pension fund
management business. In 2010, the two funds owned by the
Bank both logged expected rise in earnings, and also solid
growth in both the scheme members and assets of the pension
fund.

Financial Institution Service

The Bank stresses on intensifying cooperation with the
financial industry, working hard to expand its network of
correspondent banks, firming the basis and widening the areas
of cooperation. By establishing correspondent relationships
with over 300 banks, the Bank provide customers with
fast, smooth, and complete clearing and service networks
worldwide. In 2010, the Bank continued to work with
financial institutions such as banks and insurance companies
in greater depth, to enhance service levels and broaden its

businesses such as asset custody and remittance agency.
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E-Banking Service

In order to always extend our business channels and upgrade
our service system, the Bank has been boosting investments
on its self-service terminals and better laying out the
automated device services. At the end of 2010, the number
of ATMs reached a hundred, an increase of 14 units or 16%
over the last year, creating a channeling advantage with all
machines joining the network of Hong Kong-Macau JETCO
and that of China UnionPay, mostly covering the major areas

in Macau.

The EasiPhone Banking services of the Bank allow our
customer remote access to their personal banking and general
financial services via phone. Enjoying the advantage of
industry-leading technology, we are able to introduce a
powerful internet banking system give a wide variety of

electronic banking services to customers.

The Bank makes available the application of e-commerce
online payment, and tops among local peer for its service
varieties, self-contained features, and transactions safety
in business such as online securities trading and merchant
payment. In 2010, customers of personal and corporate
internet banking soared 134% and 146% than last year

respectively.

Bank Card Business

The Bank quickens the innovation and promotion of its card
products and strives to increase its brand influence. Thanks
to the robust development of the bank card business, in
2010, there were satisfactory growths in both the volume of
card issuance and transaction amount of merchant acquiring
business. This helped to secure the Bank’s market standing
and created a positive effect on the brand image. In order to
improve customer service network and platform, and promote
the construction of global channels, the Bank set up a Peony
Credit Card VIP Service Center which presents high-end
customers with high quality service, resulting for the bank

card business with a larger market share.
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In 2010, the Bank successfully introduced the VISA Standard
EMV Chip Card and Chip Dual Currency Credit Card. CUP
POS machines and VISA/MASTER POS machines both broke
the thousand, running ahead in the industry. The ICBC Macau
“e-Age Card” and “Elite Club Card” merge the function of
both “UnionPay” and “JETCO”, which provide our customers
with multifunctional services such as personal settlement and
investment. The Bank has been upgrading the quality of its
UnionPay card acquiring business which is keeping steady

and rapid growth.

RMB Business

Budding at a feverish rate, in 2010, our RMB deposits
amplified over 50 times. The Bank, serving as a good banking
partner for corporate customers on the subject of cross-
border RMB trade settlement and RMB-related financing in
Macau, demonstrated its cross-border RMB business services
capabilities and established the brand image of a RMB

business colossus.

Precious Metal Business

The Bank started its Precious Metal Business from scratch.
In 2010, the Bank introduced bullion products such as
“Ruyi Gold” and “Ruyi Silver”, with steady growth in sales
volume. Precious Metal Account business for Gold and Silver
is planned to enrich the service chain and furnish a more

comprehensive investment service.
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ShEEE s THRBPAKAE
BEEBELEIIFO
ICBC held the product
oversea launching of its
Precious Metal Business
in Macau, and assign
ICBC (Macau) as overseas
centre of its Precious
Metal Business
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By providing the aircraft leasing
business famous Airlines, it serves
as the door to new business
opportunities
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Launching of the 1st ICBC
Credit Card Shopping Festival
and Welcome Dinner for the
group of ICBC’s VIP cusotmer
to Macau

HEIARTHEAAREESRE
(BERESEHREEER
Signing ceremony of Strategic
Co-operation Agreement with
Chow Tai Fook on Precious
Metal Business

TERRPIERH B E (S (RFT)
BEERFRMAES
ICBC Macau & China
Telecom (Macau)
Co-branded MasterCard
Launching Ceremony
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Signing ceremony of
Co-operation Agreement

with HSBC Insurance
(International), accelerate
the development of
insurance agency and wealth
management business.
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The opening of the
1st Overseas VIP
Service Center for
ICBC cardholders
in Macau ' that
effectively improve

THRBMRBBREELRERREBE the service standard
Organizing Investment Seminars
for the investment clients of ICBC
Macau
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Signing Ceremony with

Australia and New Zealand

Banking Group Limited

for launching the first

Certificate of Deposit in
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ICBC Macau was awarded
the 2010 Best Syndicated
Loan by The Asset Magazine
of Hong Kong for jointly
leading the syndicated loan
of the well-known enterprise
in Macau

1“'" s
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THRBFEGEHFEFRTETEREBEE
Signing ceremony of Co-operation Signing ceremony of Strategic
Agreement for remittance service with Co-operation Agreement with
Banco Comercial Portugués, S.A. China Telecom (Macau)
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In 2010, recovery was still uncertain in the major developed
economies. Under the economic stimulus measure of the
“Quantitative Easing” monetary policy in the United States
and Japan, emerging economies suffered from the massive
influx of liquidity. Macau, acting as a docking platform
between the mother country and the world, could not get
away from the risk of asset bubbles and inflation. As the
international financial regulatory reform became increasingly
intense, opportunities might arise from the expected

appreciation of the RMB against the dollar.

In 2011, the Bank will continue to study the economic
situation, secure customer relationship, highlight on the values
of service upgrade, keep on the development in advantageous
areas, remain strong in key businesses, pursue business growth
while balancing risk and cost, emphasize on reinforcing the
innovation capacity, and improve governance standard all the
time, to strive to be the most respected, excellent leading bank

in Macau.

Looking ahead, the Bank will seize the right moment of the
implementation of “Framework Agreement on Guangdong-
Macao Co-operation”. Riding on the rich experiences in
Macau local services and ICBC’s outstanding global business
capacity, together with excellent management condition and
robust growth, the Bank dedicates to promote development of
moderate economic diversification of Macau and economic
integration of Guangdong and Macao regions, better serving

and contributing to the Macau economy and society.
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The directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China (Macau) Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of
banking, financial and other related services in Macau. There
were no significant changes in the Bank’s principal activities
during the year. The principal activities of the Bank’s

subsidiaries are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.

Results and dividends

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in

the financial statements on pages 26 to 27.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year (2009: Nil).

Directors
The directors of the Bank during the year were:

Mr. Zhu Xiaoping
Mr. Huen Wing Ming, Patrick
Mr. Shen Xiaoqi
Mr. Liu Yagan
Mr. Tong Chi Kin
Mr. Wu Zongxuan
(resigned on 25 March 2010)
Mr. Nie Changwen
Mr. Ji Jingyu
(appointed on 25 March 2010)
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Share capital

There was no movement in the Bank’s authorised share
capital, meanwhile, the number of issued share capital
increased by 179,073 to 461,194 shares in 2010. Details of
the Bank’s share capital are set out in Note 19 to the financial

statements.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in Note 14 to the
financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

Auditors

Ernst & Young Auditores retire and resolution for their
reappointment as auditors of the Bank will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chairman
Zhu XiaoPing

Macau
29 March 2011



SRR
Annual Report 2010

24

o TR SR AT (MR ) B4 A PR A ] INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

WA Bl R 5 #F Independent Auditors’ Report

Ell ERNST & YOUNG

B B TR ERAT (BRI SR A PR 2 ) A J R
(7 I [ 3 P 32 B SR 17 T BR A 7] )

FM AL T B TR ERAT (RPT) A A R A W] (B
AR THGRE) AR I A 1A R R R
OB R G (R 26-107 H ) A# : AHFEEAR
2 AR - A OHARAERE - AU )
- B OBl e R R U K E KRG 5 BORBEE AU b
Fif i o

A PILE 3 J5  E AE

AU 2 S0 B k0 B R AR AT A B Y BRAT -
FUAE AL A+ AL R T 30 A7 B [ A A 2R ) [ o
w4 S DA B (o B o it 4 ) () 1 A A S B
Weae > WAL TE A SR > SRt~ BT AN A
LI PO AR P o DA B R S A T R SR M
B3R G wNG R

e bl 1 T AT

FAM i B AT R A BT A B T AR B b B s R
BRI o AT BAAY R sk i M 1k 5 4R
PEGCHR > Wl AR R I BT > WA
P T 3L A A B SR ORI AT -

A1 2 IR 0 A B g A e ) A A B
S DL 0 A o B AT 7 A M A o bt e U
SRBAM AT BRSBTS U > B A AT A AR DA
DRt B 2 AR AN A TR B R

To the shareholders of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China (Macau) Limited
(Incorporated in Macau with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
(the “Bank™) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 26 to 107, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2010, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standards promulgated by the Macao Special Administrative
Region (“Macao Financial Reporting Standards”) and, where
applicable, the International Financial Reporting Standards,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing
Standards and the Technical Auditing Standards of the Macao
Special Administrative Region and the International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank and of
the Group as at 31 December 2010, and of the Group’s profit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the
Macao Financial Reporting Standards and, where applicable,
the International Financial Reporting Standards.

Dilys Chau, Registered Auditor
Ernst & Young

Macao
29 March 2011
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A hrzEE Consolidated Income Statement

2010
M &t WM T
Notes MOP’000

BB INTEREST INCOME 1,347,914
83 INTEREST EXPENSE (738,782)
A BB NET INTEREST INCOME 609,132
HAbEFEBA OTHER OPERATING INCOME 4 538,299
BEBRA OPERATING INCOME 1,147,431
BEEM OPERATING EXPENSES 5 (387,365)
84 i ) OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 760,066
¥ MR R K CHARGE FOR IMPAIRMENT

LOSSES ON LOANS,

ADVANCES AND TRADE

BILLS 6 (36,555)
HEWHRMESBEEA  REPURCHASE COSTS OF

LEHMAN BROTHERS

MINIBONDS
B i 28 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 723,511
BB INCOME TAX EXPENSE 7 (82,968)

A

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

640,543

REZFR-FFEFH=1+—HIL4E Year ended 31 December 2010

2009

W Too

MOP’000

(B EF)
(restated)

1,161,554

(628,141)

533,413

384,600

918,013

(340,413)

577,600

(31,188)

(18,317)

528,095

(69,585)

458,510
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BBty Financial Statements (4 Continued)

AP AR Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income &% =284 +—J1=+—H L4 Year ended 31 December 2010

2010
WP T
MOP’000
A PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 640,543
Fofib 55 45 e i OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

[k B B WA R A CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE

SR RESERVE OF AVAILABLE-

FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19,406
PiE By INCOME TAX EFFECT (2,178)
AAEBE AR A A A 2 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET

OF TAX
AR BLAR 55 B Ak TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET

OF TAX 657,771
5 8 % B 3R o 2 ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE BANK 657,771

2009

BT
MOP 000

458,510

100,905

(1,100)

99,805

558,315

558,315
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BB #Eth Financial Statements (4 Continued)

HEHEEAMEFE Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2010
ik BT
Notes MOP’000

YA ASSETS
B4 R AERAT K Cash and balances with banks 4,390,158
oy R R R R Deposits with monetary authority 2,132,416
ey {EE'S Placements with other banks 8 6,159,917
15 5E % DA R EFHE B

SEEE AR BIEE 4R Financial assets at fair value through

HE profit or loss 10 3,594,288
itk & mh g B Derivative financial assets 23 79,341
& P BBk Loans and advances to customers 9 47,723,454
]t H B R Available-for-sale investments 12 4,287,930
JRE Wk T e LAt Receivables and other assets 414,736
HEZEIHHRE Held-to-maturity investments 11 2,541,839
Py > BEH K Property, plant and equipment 14 247,484
G AR Investment property 15 58,144
HE TEFL K Deferred tax assets 18 15,076
1 Total assets 71,644,783
15 LIABILITIES
) 217 ik Deposits from banks 16 4,061,182
&P 1E#K Deposits from customers 17 56,484,111
it A4 Derivative financial liabilities 23 83,751
HAl A F Other liabilities 753,366
JEAS 5 25 BLAE A\ B 4 Debt issued and borrowed funds 2,001,290
BT RS Certificates of deposit issued 1,510,203
JEAS P A5 Income tax payable 154,040
FEG=Ri Total liabilities 65,047,943
LESER £ EQUITY
Je A% Share capital 19 461,194
BEARA S Reserves 6,135,646
HE 75 B8 %0 Total equity 6,596,840
SV Btk Total equity and liabilities 71,644,783

ZR-FREFZHAZ+—H 31 December 2010

2009

W Too

MOP’000

(B EF)
(restated)

1,349,957
1,001,825
1,580,739

5,254,279
22,096
37,116,164
1,877,952
290,139
3,013,960
244,973
58,861
10,665

51,821,610

2,929,391
42,619,709
20,557
504,394
2,001,290

113,227
48,188,568
282,121
3,350,921

3,633,042

51,821,610

AR BET

Zhu Xiaoping

HFR

Chairman

A WEH
Shen Xiaoqi

AR RA TR
Vice Chairman and CEO
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Ej%*ﬁ% Financial Statements (# Continued)

BPERZHE Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #%=% %% =A=+—H L4 Year ended 31 December 2010

BEREALME
Reserves
] RATH
RA BEANEA  RARE  BEdhs e JEHE  mRkE it
Assigned Investment
Share capital from Share Legal  revaluation Other Retained
capital ~ Head Office premium reserve reserve reserves profits Total
Wl WML WM RPRTT OWRER WMRTX WMWER O WeNER
MOP’000 MOP'000  MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP*000 MOP’000 MOP'000  MOP’000
()
(Notes (i))
“EENE-H-R At 1 January 2009 (before integration)

(B4 150,000 401,655 — 155,607* (609,150)%  295329*  1,741,009* 2,674,470
REFH Reorganization during the year 108,695 (401,655) 290,425 90,024 — (90,024) 2,535 —
BHRM Issue of shares 23426 — 376,831 — = — = 400,257
s e Total comprehensive income for the

year — — — — 99,805 — 458510 558,315
FERELHAMENE Transfer from legal reserve to retained

profits - — — (89.470) — — 89,470 —
AMCM SR A Appropriation to other reserves under

Hefid AMCM requirement — — — — — 156,744 (156,744) —
ECRRE At 31 December 2009 and

FZHE—AR at | January 2010

“E-RE-JI- 282,121 — 667,256 156,161* 30,635* 362,049 2134800 3,633,042
BRH Issue of shares 179,073 — 2126954 — — — — 2,306,027
Ly Se Total comprehensive income

for the year — — - — 17,228 — 640,543 657,771
e Yy d Transfer from retained profits to legal

el g Teserve — — = 45,76 = — 45,762) —
AMCM B4l Appropriation to other reserves under

Hfid AMCM requirement — — - — — 78,298 (78,298) —
FZ-FEFZH  At31 December 2010

=1—H 461,194 — 2794210 201,923* 47,883+ 440347¢  2,651,283F 6,596,840

®

5 SRR B AR A AR P A R R M G 3,341,436,000

JE(ZREFIUERBMIE 2,683,665,000 JG) °

7 4 [H 42 HE LT 4 il B A R I RSB - AR B A M s R
TEER I A B 4 > PRFF AT 90 AF 1 5 4 B % 1 28 1R
B s R R B WK - R —FET A
=+ —H > H b4 Z WM G 423,370,000 76
(ZRZUEBWMIT 345,072,000 76 ) TG B 35 90 [ 4
TRl R B 8 s AN T4 B AT o

These reserve accounts represented the consolidated reserves of
MOP3,341,436,000 (2009: MOP2,683,665,000).

Note:

(®

The Group complies with Monetary Authority of Macao’s
(“AMCM?”) requirement to maintain impairment allowances in
excess of the Bank’s collective impairment allowances required
under International Financial Reporting Standards through the
appropriation of retained profits to other reserves. As at 31
December 2010, MOP423,370,000 (2009: MOP345,072,000)
was included in other reserves which is not distributable under
AMCM’s requirement.
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AHBERERE Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BB #Eth Financial Statements (4 Continued)

Mk
Notes
B W 2 1 B AR CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B 2 A Profit before tax
R Adjustments for:
g Depreciation 5
Wl Bt B Y 4 R R Dividend income from available-
FlBA for-sale investments 4
AR E R Y& Losses on disposal of items of
[SEEES property, plant and equipment 4
FA ZBH H EE NI Amortisation of discount and
AR 7 9 P B premium of held-to-maturity
investments
Ji B WPt R R Net (gains)/losses from
disposal of available-for-sale
investments
SRLE A REEAEE) Net gains from financial assets at
e zs fair value through profit or loss
B 5Bk R B A Y A Impairment allowance on loans
e and advances to customers 6
A] Bt 3R B DR YA Impairment allowance on
available-for-sale investments
5 U5 5 B T Provision for compensation to
Octave note holders 5
A7 ) SE 3 G B = 7 Increase in placements with other
EHE=MH) banks with original maturity
longer than three months
&5 Bk R EEK 1 Y Increase in loans and advances to
customers
JRE WALk T o At 5 2 334 Increase in receivables and other
assets
EMEENREMEHELR  Decrease in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss
] SE 47 T Increase in deposits from other
banks
% P A8 Increase in deposits from customers
oAl B ARG Increase in other liabilities
A 4x B 3 Increase/(decrease) in derivative
financial liabilities
e Al & E B Increase in derivative financial
assets
B LA I 2R I B IR Cash generated from/(used in)
operations
FBE S AF Profit tax paid
YR B A A R B AR Net cash flows from/(used in)

operating activities

2010

BT
MOP’000

723,511
25,613
(1,346)

3,058

(1,218)

(26,466)
(40,093)
36,555

9,433
48,410

777,457

(1,258,660)

(10,643,845)

(124,597)
1,700,084
1,131,791

13,864,402

209,157

63,194
(57,245)

5,661,738
(45,344)

5,616,394

BEZF-FFEFA=+—HILEE Year ended 31 December 2010

2009

BT
MOP’000

(B EF)
(restated)

528,095
28,264
(1,220)

1,596

1,786

9,144
(92,601)

31,188

506,252

(13,090,636)
(92,570)
2,817,632
2,316,001
5,877,313
213,949
(13,433)
(14,196)

(1,479,688)
(26,644)

(1,506,332)
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BBty Financial Statements (4 Continued)

AMBARER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (4 coninied) 8% ~2—B4+ A =+—H 1A% Year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
ik BT WP T I0
Notes MOP’000 MOP’000

TG B A 2 R B AR Net cash flows from/(used in)

operating activities 5,616,394 (1,506,332)
BEIS BB CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
WAt EREEEREWA  Dividend income from available-for-
sale investments 4 1,346 1,220
B R G Purchases of available-for-sale
investments (2,748,685) (832,032)
i T Bt M R AR Proceeds from disposal of available-
for-sale investments 362,924 80,843
JEE R R A RE Purchases of held-to-maturity
investments (1,688,245)
R B2 A R E K Proceeds from redemption and
(I I o 2R B ) retirement upon maturity of held-to-
maturity investments 673,578 739,691
EEWE - WEMEMIIE  Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment 260 86
i E ¥ - WA Purchases of items of property, plant
and equipment 14 (30,738) (23,263)
B By AR B AR Net cash flows used in investing
activities (1,741,315) (1,721,700)
E et BT CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
S ERB R B 4 Proceeds from issue of debts — 2,001,290
BT E R B & Proceeds from issue of certificates of
deposit 1,510,203 —
BT RE W BB 4 Proceeds from issue of shares 2,306,026 400,227
BB EEFSE Net cash flows from financing
activities 3,816,229 2,401,517
TR EMBL &5 Y NET INCREASE/(DECREASE)
IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 7,691,308 (826,515)
T 2R 48 ) R 28 (3B ) Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net — (2,535)
BRI B 4 KB4 %EY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year 4,732,520 5,561,570
WABERBALSFEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 12,423,828 4,732,520
BeRBESEWEBAH  ANALYSIS OF BALANCES
OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
FEFEBL A KRBT FERK Cash on hand and balances with banks 4,390,158 1,349,957
A7 T B A 0 e T B Deposits with monetary authority
=1 H NEZK with original maturity within three
months 2,132,416 1,001,825
FRFEERMG MR =M AN  Placements with other banks with
2K original maturity within three
months 4,901,257 1,580,739
PGB = H WBUFERFY  Treasury bills with original maturity
&% within 3 months 999,997 799,999

12,423,828 4,732,520




R
Annual Report 2010

32

o TR SR AT (MR ) B4 A PR A ] INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED
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A B & Bt 5E Notes to Financial Statements

1. AAEFR

TSR AT B B — LG AR AR I P B B
BRI ERAT  — 2R NE—HZ+N\H >
T SR AT BUAS R LR AT 79.93% B R4y > B %%
B R AT o

W —FZIE—H T H TESRIT R 8
AP o R SRAT T B R LR SRAT MR 4 AT
Py 2 50 Vo e o L SR A T B AT BT IR 5
LB AT B T SRAT R 4 4T B A o 2 B
TRISRAT (R BRI A RA F o ZIEEE K
ANEWERIES R LHRTERMEEL N R
AR o TRSRATUE A K T8 M 447 1 2
G ~ AU BER - ST o MR R SR
FEB+F=FE T =+ — B
G BANFFAELHT—H BB PH
RATEEEEHZEY - WM SR RN
P A LA T B R A IR S B B AT T e =2 A
WA OB > AT 44 H8 ol B SR AT ks b I v
SRAT Q) e B BRA W] o B A 1% » TRISRAT
TR ARAT B4 L 3 m 2] 89.33% o

1.

ZR—FHETZA=Z1T—H 31 December 2010

Corporate Information

The Bank is previously known as Seng Heng Bank
Limited (“SHB”) which has been operating as a
licensed bank in Macau since 1972. On 28 January
2008, 79.93% of the share capital of the Bank was
acquired by Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(“ICBC”) and since then, ICBC become the Bank’s

ultimate holding company.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in an extra-
ordinary general meeting of the Bank on 19 January
2009, ICBC decided to subscribe new shares in
SHB by contributing the entire net assets of Banco
Industrial E Comercial Da China, Macao Branch
(“ICBC Macau Branch”) and formed a new company
named “Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Macau) Limited”. The transaction was intended to
integrate ICBC’s assets as well as human resources
in Macau for its further business expansion. The
integration was accomplished by ICBC acquiring
all the 132,121 new shares of SHB, the purchase
consideration for subscription of new shares was in
the form of cash as well as transferring all assets and
liabilities, the rights and obligations of ICBC Macau
Branch to SHB. Having obtained the approval in
respect of the integration and issuance of new shares
from the China Banking Regulatory Commission, the
Monetary Authority of Macau, as well as the Chief
Executive of Macau SAR, the merge finally came into
effect on 11 July 2009, and the name of the Bank was
then changed from SHB to Industrial Commercial
Bank of China (Macau) Limited. After the merger,
ICBC'’s shareholding of the Bank increased to 89.33%.
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BB FiE T Notes to Financial Statements (# coniinves) ~ —2—%4#+—A=+—H 31 December 2010

B THABABRTREBE N PORER - M=
F-RE—ALHEFGEBRAYE > THIM
17 P BEATAT 179,073 45551 B o AEBUS B
SITEEREHAEY WMEMEHRRE
BB AR B M e e 1% > A= F—F4ENH %
BLEEAT o J5 TR DA BT o P S 40 4 o s ) B 91550
e > AAT 3 W B 23 5 P G T B AT A 5 A
A 4x > TRSRATUI R 24T 89.33% MY JBeAfE o

AFTBAE +=R4AT - ZHEE AR R H
BT o EESEFAS A AR B BRI Ho [ B2
SRAT ~ FAR A BRI o ACAT Ak 3 2 Hb 286
Zy BT DR AR JG I T L SR MR T
SRR s+ o

In order to cope well with the rapid development in
the Bank’s operations after the merger, ICBC decided
to issue additional 179,073 new shares pursuant to a
resolution passed in a board meeting of the Bank on 7
January 2010. Having obtained the approval in respect
of the issuance of new shares from the China Banking
Regulatory Commission and the Monetary Authority
of Macau, the transaction was completed in August
2010, The Bank received a total of MOP2.3 billion
from the new share issuance; the existing shareholders
acquired the shares proportionate to their original
shareholdings in the Bank. ICBC’s shareholding of the

Bank remained 89.33% after the share issuance.

The Bank is now with 13 branches, 3 subsidiaries and
a work force around 500 staff members. The principal
activities have remained unchanged and are the
provision of banking, financial and related services
in Macau and nearby regions. The Bank’s registered
office is 18th Floor, ICBC Tower, Macau Landmark,
555 Avenida da Amizade, Macau.
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AR iE T Notes to Financial Statements (# continuea)

2.1

SV 5 i e 1 2 R

U A O S B R A e TR P A AT B e SR
25/2005 SEAT Bk B BT R A S 5 ik o o B (T
1 5 25t o ) ) A o SRR A 2 A o B
3 AR SCHLAE B SEHS » IRV EEHIBI AR %
F\AE— H — 1 R B S 25 o e O AT st
VE B o [ W B 5 o o B 45 1o S e U B
HEr AR AR R R R > DL B Bt R Al &
Bl EL R 5 5 hh 1 o o 0 R R
ZH AR o BrDLA Fo (B8R W i 4l 5 7
WAk B R e AT A Bk TR DA R AL B
B > AT i R FH IR R BRAR P A

B 53 48 WA o b OF B 5 AR A R o
(MOP) Z st BB W > M3E I AZITI0

£ D i AL

AAHMBEREREZ—-RET2A=Z+—
H o> G OFAAT K Wit 2> 7 (S 2 T AR SR 1 1) i
T B B 2 S o o O A ) W S 5 R AR B R
R 3 BT ] > S AP — B o st
R o FOF R o v P A S A o WO IO (B A AR
9 I p e o 2 D) R A o KR Y
HiR 22 B o A P 4 LR AR S I R
BB £ OF I 2 BT DASIRHS -

R -FEFZAZ+—H 31 December 2010

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standards set out in Administrative Regulation No.
25/2005 of the Special Administrative Region of
Macau (“MFRS”) and, where MFRS has no provisions
governing the accounting treatment for a particular
balance or transaction, the International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) in issue and applicable
for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2008. IFRSs comprise standards and interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”), and International Accounting
Standards and Standing Interpretations Committee
interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Committee that remain in
effect. These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except for the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
available-for-sale investments and derivatives financial

instruments, which have been measured at fair value.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Patacas (“MOP”) and all values are rounded to the

nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
separate financial statements of the Bank and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2010. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Bank, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of these subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being
the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions,
unrealised gains and losses resulting from inter-
group transactions and dividends are eliminated on

consolidation in full.
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Eﬂtﬁiﬁ%l}ﬁgf NOteS to FinanCial Statements (# Continued)

2.2

A€ il R B 5% B R LS

ACAE > ARG UCER DA ORI AT DA R AR AE T #Y
T P 75 o o ) A A S o

I e o e BB B2
FIR BT
I P A A I A 58 1 ST
BTN AR B8 — B
ERERITHEALT A
I e e e I W B A O 0 W T I
MBI Fff — EBY BRI S
24
I e e FEHA
39 (AT
I P L 56 07 9 BRI B
(BH3T)

I s 2 2 30 55 BB AR 30 R LA
sl ERIG R — ABHENRE
BH

I P i o A FHEE TS EENAT
REGE175ERE

WA A S0 R BB B S SRR
BAHBER-ZFNE  BHIHGHENLRHYEER
+ A Bt 5T FHGHAE 7T — FHE

FAR AL REN SR T

“RFNERBREREE ZRFNEL R — R R

M2 W BRI T

TR B B A S O > AR
ZERZIETH > CHIY— R 5 i 1B
o 3 S PR A T o T A 9 U A O R A A
K o BRE PR AN A 5T i e E BOR A s
Bb > e B T S AT T A 5 A R A A
SR > EBII FRAC SR I 1 R S A BT A Z B
1% > BBIRWT ¢

R -FEFZAZ+—H 31 December 2010

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policy and

Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

[FRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards

[FRS 1 Amendments Amendments to I[FRS 1 First-time
Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards — Additional

Exemptions for First-time Adopters

[FRS 2 Amendments Amendments to [FRS 2 Share-based
Payment — Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment Transactions

IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

[AS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

[AS 39 Amendment Amendment to [AS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items

[FRIC-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to

Owners
[FRS 5 Amendments included in ~ Amendments to [FRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations — Plan to sell the

Improvements to [FRSs issued
in October 2008
controlling interest in a subsidiary
Amendments to a number of IFRSs issued
in May 2009

Improvements to IFRSs 2009

Improvements to IFRSs 2009 issued in May 2009 sets
out amendments to a number of IFRSs. There are
separate transitional provisions for each standard.
While the adoption of some of the amendments results
in changes in accounting policies, none of these
amendments has had a significant financial impact
on the Group. Details of the key amendments most

applicable to the Group are as follows:
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Ejﬁiﬁ%l}ﬁ%i Notes to Financial Statements (# Continued)

253

o BBREEEAE TR ERER : R
15 B 7 B T B R — SRR 8 F) Y
S o AT DAY SRS AR B E A v
Bl -

AT B ARG T A I B B 5 o U RO BR A > I
WA A R R -

LA AR 2 380 1 Wt S 5 3k o o B

ACER B A A A Y B 2 i b > SEORERA DR
EUEA AL A A 290 B T T B ARG T IR e S 25
e -

I P A A I 58 1 ST R
BT BB B AR
— HIRHA A TR
Bl BRI TN B LB
HBHARFEER
I e e e I P A B 7 S0 R
kA BIA : 1 — 2RZENHE
BBMERERAEE 2HIA
BRGS0 SR 2SR
il Jife c 1 BENEREE
I s 2 2 04 5 BB inE
(B537)

I 2 5 30 5 Bt 0 s R A T
AT R BB RN
HRHEREABEAG HRHEREABZAGS 45RE
145 IR BB AREE S ERMHH
BB ERERARERG  HRMETARMCHAT

BI9RE

2.3

R -FEFZAZ+—H 31 December 2010

1IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Requires that
only expenditures that result in a recognised
asset in the statement of financial position can

be classified as a cash flow from investing

activities.

The adoption of the new and revised IFRSs has had

no significant financial effect on these financial

statements.

Issued but not yet Effective International
Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and

revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

IFRS 1 Amendment

Amendment to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption
of International Financial Reporting
Standards — Limited Exemption from
Comparative IFRS 7 Disclosures for First-
time Adopters*

[FRS 7 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets *

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments ©

IAS 12 Amendments

Amendments to I4S 12 Income Taxes:

Recovery of Underlying Assets *

IAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures’

[AS 32 Amendment Amendment to [AS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Classification of Rights
Issues '

[FRIC-Int 14 Amendments Amendments to IFRIC-Int 14 Prepayments of
a Minimum Funding Requirement

[FRIC-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments”
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Apart from the above, the IASB has issued
Improvements to IFRSs 2010 which sets out
amendments to a number of IFRSs primarily with
a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. The amendments to IFRS 3 and IAS 27 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2010, whereas the amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS
7, IAS 1, TIAS 34 and IFRIC-Int 13 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
although there are separate transitional provisions for

each standard.

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
February 2010

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2010

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2011

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2012

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2013

The amendments to IFRS 1 were issued in December
2010 and shall be applied for financial years beginning
on or after 1 July 2011. The amendments consist of two
narrow amendments to IFRS 1. The first amendment
replaces references to a fixed date of “1 January 2004
with “the date of transition to IFRSs”, thus eliminating
the need for companies adopting IFRSs for the first
time to restate derecognition transactions that occurred
before the date of transition to IFRSs. The second
amendment provides guidance on how an entity should
resume presenting financial statements in accordance
with IFRSs after a period when the entity was unable
to comply with IFRSs because its functional currency
was subject to severe hyperinflation. As the Group is
not a first-time adopter of IFRSs, the amendment will

not have any financial impact on the Group
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The IFRS 7 Amendments introduce more extensive
quantitative and qualitative disclosure requirements
regarding transfer transactions of financial assets
(e.g., securitisations), including information for
understanding the possible effects of any risks that
may remain with the entity that transferred the assets.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments from
1 January 2012 and comparative disclosures are not

required for any period beginning before that date.

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of
phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on
the basis of both the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. This
aims to improve and simplify the approach for the
classification and measurement of financial assets

compared with the requirements of IAS 39.

In October 2010, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS
9 to address financial liabilities (the “Amendments”)
and incorporated in IFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of IAS 39. Most of
the Amendments were carried forward unchanged from
IAS 39, while changes were made to the measurement
of financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO”). For
these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair
value of a liability that is attributable to changes in
credit risk must be presented in other comprehensive
income (“OCI”). The remainder of the change in fair
value is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation
of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s
credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts which
have been designated under the FVO are scoped out of

the Amendments.
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IAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by IFRS 9 in its
entirety. Before this entire replacement, the guidance
in IAS 39 on hedge accounting and impairment of
financial assets continues to apply. The Group expects
to adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2013.

Amendments to IAS 12 were issued in December
2010 which introduces a rebuttable presumption
that deferred tax on investment property measured
using the fair value model in IAS 40 should be
determined on the basis that its carrying amount
will be recovered through sale. The amendments
also require that deferred tax on non-depreciable
assets measured using the revaluation model in IAS
16 should always be measured on a sale basis. As a
result of the amendments, SIC 21 Income Taxes —
Recovery of Revalued Non-depreciable Assets, will be
superseded once the amendments become effective.
The Group expects to adopt the Amendments to 1AS
12 retrospectively from 1 January 2012. The Group
expects the adoption of these amendments will not

have any material financial impact on the Group.

IAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the
definition of related parties. It also provides for
a partial exemption of related party disclosure to
government-related entities for transactions with
the same government or entities that are controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the
same government. The Group expects to adopt IAS 24
(Revised) from 1 January 2011 and the comparative
related party disclosures will be amended accordingly.
While the adoption of the revised standard will result
in changes in the accounting policy, the revised
standard is unlikely to have any impact on the related
party disclosures as the Group currently does not have
any significant transactions with government-related

entities.
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The amendment to IAS 32 was issued in October 2009
and shall be applied for financial years beginning on
or after 1 February 2010. The amendment to IAS 32
revises the definition of financial liabilities such that
rights, options or warrants issued to acquire a fixed
number of the entity’s own equity instruments for a
fixed amount of any currency are equity instruments,
provided that the entity offers the rights, options
or warrants pro rata to all of its existing owners
of the same class of its own non-derivative equity
instruments. The Group expects to adopt the IAS
32 Amendment from 1 January 2011. As the Group
currently has no such rights, options or warrants in
issue, the amendment is unlikely to have any financial

impact on the Group.

The amendments to IFRIC-Intl4 were issued in
December 2009 and shall be applied for financial years
beginning on or after 1 January 2011. The amendments
to IFRIC-Intl4 remove an unintended consequence
arising from the treatment of prepayments of future
contributions in certain circumstances when there is
a minimum funding requirement. The amendments
require an entity to treat the benefit of an early
payment as a pension asset. The economic benefit
available as a reduction in future contributions is
thus equal to the sum of (i) the prepayment for future
services and (ii) the estimated future services costs
less the estimated minimum funding requirement
contributions that would be required as if there were
no prepayments. The Group expects to adopt the
IFRIC-Int 14 Amendments from 1 January 2011. As the
Group has no defined benefit scheme, the amendments

will not have any financial impact on the Group.
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IFRIC-Int19 was issued in December 2009 and shall
be applied for financial years beginning on or after
1 July 2010. It addresses the accounting by an entity
when the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated
and result in the entity issuing equity instruments to
a creditor of the entity to extinguish all or part of the
financial liability. The Group expects to adopt the
interpretation from 1 January 2011. The interpretation
clarifies that equity instruments issued to a creditor to
extinguish a financial liability are consideration paid
in accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished, and the consideration paid, shall be
recognised in profit or loss. The consideration paid
should be measured based on the fair value of the
equity instrument issued or, if the fair value of the
equity instrument cannot be reliably measured, the
fair value of the financial liability extinguished. As
the Group has not undertaken such transactions, the
interpretation is unlikely to have any financial impact

on the Group.

Improvements to IFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010 sets
out amendments to a number of IFRSs. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January
2011. There are separate transitional provisions for
each standard. While the adoption of some of the
amendments may result in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments are expected to
have a significant financial impact on the Group.
Those amendments that are expected to have impact

on the Group’s policies are as follows:
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(b)

R -FEFZAZ+—H 31 December 2010

IFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that
the amendments to IFRS 7, TAS 32 and IAS
39 that eliminate the exemption for contingent
consideration do not apply to contingent
consideration that arose from business
combinations whose acquisition dates precede
the application of IFRS 3 (as revised in 2008).

In addition, the amendments limit the
measurement choice of non-controlling interests
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets to components
of non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation. Other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another

measurement basis is required by another IFRS.

The amendments also added explicit guidance
to clarify the accounting treatment for non-
replaced and voluntarily replaced share-based

payment awards.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Clarifies that an analysis of other comprehensive
income for each component of equity can be
presented either in the statement of changes in

equity or in the notes to the financial statements.

I1AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements: Clarifies that the consequential
amendments from [AS 27 (as revised in 2008)
made to TAS 21, TAS 28 and IAS 31 shall
be applied prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009 or earlier if

TAS 27 is applied earlier.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity who’s financial and operating
policies the Bank controls, directly or indirectly, so as

to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Bank’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Bank’s interests in subsidiaries are

stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Merger accounting

The use of merger accounting is to account for a
common control combination with no acquisition
occurred and there has been a continuation of the
risks and benefits to the controlling party that existed
prior to the combination. Use of merger accounting
recognises this by accounting for the combining
entities or businesses as though the separate entities or

businesses where continuing as before.

In applying merger accounting, financial statement
items of the combining entities or businesses for
the reporting period in which the common control
combination occurs, and for any comparative periods
disclosed, are included in the consolidated financial
statements of the combined entity as if the combination
had occurred from the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the control of

the controlling party.

Where the combining entities or businesses include an
entity or a business previously acquired from a third
party, the financial statement items of such entity
or business are only included in the consolidated
financial statements of the combined entity from
the date of the previous using the acquisition values

recognised at that date.
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A single uniform set of accounting policies is adopted
by the combined entity. Therefore, the combined
entity recognised the assets, liabilities and equity of
the combining entities or businesses at the carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements of
the controlling party prior to the common control
combination. If consolidated financial statements
were not previously prepared by the controlling
party, the carrying amounts are included as if such
consolidated financial statements had been prepared,
including adjustments required for the conforming the
combined entity’s accounting policies and applying
those policies to all periods presented. These carrying
amounts are referred to below as existing book values
from the controlling party’s perspective. There is
no recognition of any additional goodwill or excess
of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost at the time of the common control
combination to the extent of the continuation of the
controlling party’s interests. Similarly, in accordance
with IAS 27, the effects of all transactions between the
combining entities or businesses, whether occurring
before or after the combination, are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the

combined entity.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required other
than financial assets, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the

impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
income statement in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that

revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the Group;
(ii) has an interest in the Group that gives it
significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has
joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or its holding company;
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(e) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or
for which significant voting power in such
entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group, or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset and a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets

with specific useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to
write off the cost or of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this

purpose are as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated

Leasehold land under finance Over the shorter of the lease terms and
leases and buildings 50 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years

Motor vehicles and equipment 4 to 10 years
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Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each

financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
The Group adopted the cost method for its investment
property and measures its investment property in
accordance with the requirements of IAS 16, in which
the property are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. Depreciation
is calculated on a straight-line basis at the annual rate
of 2% to write off the cost of each investment property

to its residual value over its estimated useful life.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income

statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other
than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
minimum lease payments and recorded together with
the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included in
property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases
are charged to the income statement so as to provide a

constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the

lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial
investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The
Group determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction

costs.
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All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation

or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and balances
with banks, deposits and placements with a regulator
and banks, other receivables, loans receivables,
quoted and unquoted financial instruments, derivative

financial instruments and receivables and other assets.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by IAS 39. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement. These net fair
value changes do not include any dividends or interest
earned on these financial assets, which are recognised
in accordance with the policy set out for “Revenue

recognition” below.
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The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess
whether the intent to sell them in the near term is
still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade
these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable
future significantly changes, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
The reclassification from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss to loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity

investments depends on the nature of the assets.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value
if their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not held for trading or designated
at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the income statement.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the

cash flows that would otherwise be required.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in interest income in the income statement. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the income

statement.
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Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity are
classified as held to maturity when the Group has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-
to-maturity investments are subsequently measured
at amortised cost less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance income in the income statement.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the

income statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither classified
as held for trading nor designated at fair value through
profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are
those which are intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market

conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment valuation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the income statement in other
income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement and removed from
the available-for-sale investment valuation reserve.
Interest and dividends earned are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are
recognised in the income statement as other operating
income in accordance with the policies set out for

“Revenue recognition” below.
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When the fair value of unlisted equity securities
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such securities are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial
assets whether the ability and intention to sell them
in the near term are still appropriate. When the
Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets and management’s intent to do so
significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets
in rare circumstances. Reclassification to loans and
receivables is permitted when the financial assets meet
the definition of loans and receivables and the Group
has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the
foreseeable future or to maturity. The reclassification
to the held-to-maturity category is permitted only
when the entity has the ability and intent to hold until
the maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-
for-sale category, any previous gain or loss on that
asset that has been recognised in equity is amortised to
profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the expected cash
flows is also amortised over the remaining life of
the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the income

statement.



i
Annual Report 2010

INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED H* B T %% $R 47 (3 P9 ) Bt 0 A FR A w

53

Ej%*ﬁ% Financial Statements (# Continued)

BB FiE T Notes to Financial Statements (# coniinves) ~ —2—%4#+—A=+—H 31 December 2010

Ak e L

—HEMEE(EK - HEMEEZ I &—
MBS EZ — M5 > WA ) 78T 5%
DU I WA Ak e

. 2 WO B i 2 AR e S 5 R

o ARG OO A OB i i A
M B SRR BT R PEAE A v 2
UL 1 2 =07 R MO BRI B
SR W () ARE CHREEZEKR
FI8 2 B B R > 5 (b) A 5 ] A
HEOR B B 2 MBI I B R R - ©
T % 4

A SR ) O A OB R R KRR s
R T2 B > SIS T SR B O
Z AR 3 S P > T e e
T > U 5% T 4 S A T 5 A0 2 BRI 0 4
R PR AR o FERZMEOLT > ACHE R s AH
R AR o T Y R R A B R AR R I R
R A 452 [ T A% B R I TATE R B o

WA R i J5 R AR OO B > AIK
% Y e M T < A A 4R ) T 2 S A Y B
A SRR i

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognised when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

S the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group

has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group

could be required to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that has occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or

economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included

in a collective assessment of impairment.
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If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). If a
loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective

interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either
directly or through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been

realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is

credited to the income statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment

losses on these assets are not reversed.
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Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a

group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of
any principal payment and amortisation) and its
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in the income statement, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the

income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment below its cost. The determination of what
is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the income statement — is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the income statement. Increases
in their fair value after impairment are recognised

directly in other comprehensive income.
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In the case of debt instruments classified as available
for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the income statement. Future interest
income continues to be accrued based on the reduced
carrying amount of the asset and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The
interest income is recorded in the income statement.
Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed
through the income statement, if the increase in fair
value of the instruments can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was

recognised in the income statement.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial

recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus

directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include deposits
from banks and customers, other liabilities, derivative
financial instruments, debts and certificates of deposit

issued, interest-bearing loans and borrowings.
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Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on

their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss includes financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition

as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in
the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the income statement. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in the income
statement does not include any interest charged on

these financial liabilities.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective

interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is

included in interest expenses in the income statement.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying

amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are
traded in active markets is determined by reference
to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations
(bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active
market, the fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using
recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to
the current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow

analysis; and other valuation models.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such
as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps
to hedge its foreign currency risk and interest rate risk,
respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities

when the fair value is negative.
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Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair
value of derivatives are taken directly to the income
statement, except for the effective portion of cash flow
hedges, which is recognised in other comprehensive

income.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is
calculated by reference to current forward exchange
rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles. The
fair value of interest rate swap contracts is determined

by reference to market values for similar instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and

form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,

which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in interest

expenses in the income statement.
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Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current
and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the

countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

. where the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised, except:

. where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the

same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured. The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before

revenue is recognised.

(i)  Interest and similar income and expense

For all financial instruments measured at
amortised cost, interest bearing financial
assets classified as available-for-sale and
financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss, interest income or
expense is recorded using the Effective Interest
Rate (“EIR”), which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset or financial liability. The
calculation takes into account all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment options) and includes any fees or
incremental costs that are directly attributable
to the instrument and are an integral part of the

EIR, but not future credit losses.
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The carrying amount of the financial asset
or financial liability is adjusted if the Group
revises its estimates of payments or receipts.
The adjusted carrying amount is calculated
based on the original EIR and the change in
carrying amount is recorded as ‘Other operating
income’. However, for a reclassified financial
asset for which the bank subsequently increases
its estimates of future cash receipts as a result of
increased recoverability of those cash receipts,
the effect of that increase is recognised as an
adjustment to the EIR from the date of the

change in estimate.

Once the recorded value of a financial asset
or a group of similar financial assets has been
reduced due to an impairment loss, interest
income continues to be recognised using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment

loss.

Fee and commission income

The Group earns fee and commission income
from a diverse range of services it provides to its
customers. Fee income can be divided into the

following two categories:

Fee income earned from services that are

provided over a certain period of time

Fees earned for the provision of services over
a period of time are accrued over that period.
These fees include commission income and asset
management, custody and other management and

advisory fees.



i
Annual Report 2010

INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED H* B T %% $R 47 (3 P9 ) Bt 0 A FR A w 65

Ej%*ﬁ% Financial Statements (# Continued)

BB FiE T Notes to Financial Statements (# coniinves) ~ —2—%4#+—A=+—H 31 December 2010

AR T A K R K R Y R K R o B
DR HoAAE S 1 5 S0 M B & A (B ST
S RA) B B K A BT M R T B
AR o W BN T RE B AR > B

TEBESE 57 IR 5 I 11 2 JH

BN E AR BB R B2 B =0
22 o W EBTRRA > s PRI R R R R
HoAl i 27 > W BB B R A > TR R
By 50 R A TR R o B FH S 2 A 5 AL
B C R B S AT R A B OB - 7R
A7 A B FO L 5 AR e R o

Loan commitment fees for loans that are likely
to be drawn down and other credit related fees
are deferred (together with any incremental
costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the
EIR on the loan. When it is unlikely that a loan
will be drawn down, the loan commitment fees
are recognised over the commitment period on a

straight line basis.

Fee income from providing transaction services

Fees arising from negotiating or participating in
the negotiation of a transaction for a third party,
such as the arrangement of the acquisition of
shares or other securities or the purchase or sale
of businesses, are recognised on completion of
the underlying transaction. Fees or components
of fees that are linked to a certain performance
are recognised after fulfilling the corresponding

criteria.

(iii) JREIBKA (iii) Dividend income
e S e A T A 42 [ A R 0 BRI T Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s
R s right to receive the payment is established.

Gv) BEHRA (iv) Rental income
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Rental income is recognised on a time

proportion basis over the lease terms.

Employee benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement

benefits scheme for its employees, including key

management personnel. Contributions are made based

on a percentage of the participating employees’ basic

salaries and are charged to the income statement as

they become payable in accordance with the rules of

the scheme.
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TR SR A DAS G 2 SRR H > SRAA
4R 5y H ERGA o o RMEUSME G Z I
BWHEE > RABEAE PP Z EREE -

AT S B 2 W) 2 2y fE B S T R P > R
HRIAR > A B A 2 B SRR 3R R
ZERBARANT Z B]EW - WAz R A
%A R Z TR Y 3 R AR A A TR > TR
A 2 5 26 U A AR B W R e B R o
BN EB I > B IO RB A B 2 I A
W2 ¥R 43 75 A W B A e R

MR BB T RER > WA A W 2 Bl 4
T RB SR A H Y2 AR ARG P
W o WA 4 T AR AR A AR Z Bl i i
P A 2 IR T 34 M R B R WP o

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Macau
Pataca (“MOP”), which is the Bank’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences are taken
to the income statement. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when

the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than MOP. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Bank at the exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period and
their income statements are translated into MOP at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in.
On disposal of a foreign operation the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the income

statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into MOP at the exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into MOP at the weighted

average exchange rates for the year.
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AR iE T Notes to Financial Statements (# continuea)

ZE-FFEFZHAZ1—H 31 December 2010

3. BWBGRY 3. Related Party Transactions
(a) BROFEMBEHRE MM FRZRZS (@  In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
Hb > A S5 A AR 4 BE AT T DA BRI O in these financial statements, the Group had the
5 following transactions/balances with related
parties during the year:
AT Ultimate holding company
2010 2009
WP BT WP E T
MOP million MOP million
FLB WA Interest income 71
ipsS- 3l Interest expense 28
HE 3 40)) Deposits from other banks (i) 2,685
JRE A 5 25 B N 45 (i) Debt issued and borrowed funds (ii) 2,001
Bl &7 7K Cash and balances with banks 55
[ SEHRAE (1ii) Inter-bank placement (iii) 515
% PR EGK (iv) Loans and advances to customers (iv) 2,634

() WA HIR > A B ]
SER AR ] 3E 45 6k 6 B B B A
R 5 0-1.15% ©

maiEEABRENS » BEH
Ko HBA R RE M AEE OB
AT B IR A% & # 2% W 5620.01 45
(ZFEZEH20.011K) > RFAE
B 7 JEHR A B X A 75 1 H HIBOR
HFE A B - AR EF > 14.01
o WAL P 6 W R B I AE = — 4R
NAZT=ZHER > BN oEIR
1 70 37 40 ] 5 A S 10 i o

(ii)

(i) The Group’s inter-bank taking and inter-
bank balances with its ultimate holding
company pay an effective interest rate of 0
to 1.15% as at the reporting date.

(i)  As disclosed in the consolidated statement

of financial position, the Group had issued

subordinated debts held by its ultimate
holding company of MOP2,001 million

(2009: MOP2,001 million) as at the end

of the reporting period. The subordinated

debts are unsecured, and paying floating
rates linked to 6M HIBOR. Out of the total
amount, MOP1,401 million is repayable on

23 Jun 2014 and the remaining MOP600

million has no fixed term of repayment.
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WA B Notes to Financial Statements (4 continue) ~ —%—RfF+fA=+—H 31 December 2010

(i) ARk RIR > A E B BAT
[Fl 3 % A% 40 3 258 P 5T > 1l
FH 0 B W R 3 B 4€0.0001% &
2.75% o S 1 P9 HF 45 1 B R —
4F o

(iv) A 5 1 SRE 4 W [H] A B 3K i 8O
B B B R R R A 0.6% &

(iii) As at the reporting date, the Group’s inter-
bank placement with its ultimate holding
company amounted to MOP2,500 million,
which earns an effective interest rate of
0.0001 to 2.75%. Inter-group placement

will be matured within one year.

(iv) The Group’s loans and advances to

its ultimate holding company earn an

4.5% ° effective interest rate of 0.6 to 4.5%.
K5 2 ] Fellow subsidiaries

2010 2009

WP Ao WM E T

MOP million MOP million

[ SEAE T (v) Deposits from other banks () 206

B4 BRI 3K Cash and balances with banks 67

% 5 SR BB (vi) Loans and advances to customers (vi) 979

(v)  E R A 4 S A
[ 26 9% A\ ) 36 45 i F A4 T R
FIREEREHE 0.2% £ 0.21% ©

(vi) A 5 10 SR D 2 ) % A G B &
B A B T B R R AL 0.64% &
1.61% °

(b)  ZAH 1 R S 4 B i or B TN

(v) The Group’s inter-bank taking and inter-
bank balances with its fellow subsidiaries
pay an effective interest rate of 0.2 to
0.21% as at the reporting date.

(vi) The Group’s loans and advances to its
fellow subsidiaries earn an effective

interest rate of 0.64 to 1.61%.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of

the Group:
2010 2009
WP B WP BT
MOP million MOP million

1R B E A Short-term employee benefits

Bl .
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BB FiE T Notes to Financial Statements (# coniinves) ~ —2—%4#+—A=+—H 31 December 2010

4. HAbBEBOA - HH 4.  Other Operating Income, Net
2010 2009
WR T i T
MOP’000 MOP’000

B HEMEWA Fee and commission income 510,477 274,621
B 4 Fee and commission expense (67,996) (57,585)
B BN & Net fee and commission income 442,481 217,036
ey oy B R G S Dividend income from available-for-sale

JER A investments 1,346 1,220
AP HEAZ 5 B Net gains on foreign currency transactions 25,457 29,519
S L A R fE S Net gains from financial assets at fair value

bl g through profit or loss 40,093 117,937
JE B AL AR EILEE  Net gains/(losses) from disposal of available-

(482) for-sale investments 26,466 (6,589)
A4 T B w e Net (losses)/gains arising from derivative

(#%) financial instruments (6,607) 17,937
Ji B g AR R Losses on disposal of items of property, plant

and equipment (3,058) (1,596)
MERWA Rental income 9,222 7,224
oAl Others 2,899 1,912
538,299 384,600
N4 R A A4S B a H At R R B IS B The Group has no fee and commission income derived

FAH L WA o from trust and other fiduciary activities.
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AR iE T Notes to Financial Statements (# continuea)

ZEZ-FFEFZHAZ1—H 31 December 2010

5. BEEN 5. Operating Expenses

2010

BT
MOP’000

Eiig = Depreciation

F b fg e E A & Operating lease rentals on land and
ik gl buildings

BTEH Staff costs

B2&EH Pension costs

HibE¥EEH Other operating expenses

BHEEN Professional fees

25 5 R 4 Auditors’ remuneration

G WE A P B tE %5 Provision for compensation to Octave

note holders

25,613

29,641
174,149

6,637
98,307
3,007
1,601

48,410

387,365

2009
W T oo
MOP’000

(&%)
(restated)

28,264

23,722
173,508
6,348
92,987
13,082
2,502

340,413
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Eﬂtﬁiﬁ%l}ﬁgf NOteS to FinanCial Statements (# Continued)

)

%5 B B i ol YR A R AL

R -FEFZAZ+—H 31 December 2010

Impairment Allowance for Impaired Assets

(i)  Movements in impairment allowances on loans

and advances to customers:

— WA ORI At
Collective Individual
impairment impairment
allowance allowance Total
WM FE WM WM TR
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
“F—FHE—H—H At January 2010 as restated
7 41,259 47,290 88,549
AR IR 1E 2% Charged for impairment losses 31,070 10,591 41,661
S o ) R A 4 2R Write-back of impairment losses (666) (4,440) (5,106)
HAEELHFI LML Impairment allowance charged to the
H% income statement 30,404 6,151 36,555
T8 i 27 Uncollectible amounts written off — (276) (276)
P 2 Exchange realignment — 71 71
RE_F—FF At 31 December 2010
+ZHA=1+—H 71,663 53,236 124,899
“EFNE—H—H At January 2009 as restated
givl 20,819 36,634 57,453
AR IR IR R Charged for impairment losses as
restated 134,398 11,957 146,355
LLARMAiERIEES Write-back of impairment losses (113,962) (1,205) (115,167)
EEH M E RS Impairment allowance charged to the
31 32 W JRAEL AR 2% income statement as restated 20,436 10,752 31,188
REH OHHR4EE  Uncollectible amounts written off as
restated — (109) (109)
JFEE 2 8 Exchange realignment 4 13 17
BE R —FE At 31 December 2009 as restated
+=A=+—H
K 41,259 47,290 88,549
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7. Pif3Bt 7. Income Tax
A SR A AR ) BETE 37 S IR IR P Al R AL - The Group’s tax charge for the year includes
P R A TR A B E B B R DL B R R provisions for Macau complementary tax levies.
Ao ERETEEAZT Z(CEFEL: A42 Macau complementary tax has been provided at the
+=) - progressive rate to a maximum of 12% (2009: 12%) on

the estimated taxable profits.

2010 2009
WP T8 b dLic T
MOP’000 MOP’000
A BEIE Current tax 89,557 75,434
B AERLIE Deferred tax (6,589) (5,849)
ANAE B IE 7 Y Tax charge for the year 82,968 69,585
v 1 R LA A B R R > PR T A reconciliation of the statutory tax rate to the
effective tax rate of the Group is as follows:
2010 2009
WL i
MOP’000 % MOP’000 %
HeHi &R Profit before tax 723,511 528,095
AR R IE Tax at the applicable tax rate 86,759 63,741 12.07
A,/ (BIERER ) B\ / Estimated tax effect of net income/expense 1,259 161 0.03
B BT E EREA MR  that is not deductible/(not taxable)
[ in determining taxable profit
RIER R Temporary difference not recognised (158) (0.03)
FERERMA Income not subject to tax (528) (0.10)
it Others 6,369 1.22
AEEEEAENBE LN Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate 69,585 13.19




SR -FEEH
Annual Report 2010

INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED H Bl T. % R 47 (M ) B4 & IR A &

73

BBty Financial Statements (4 Continued)

BB FiE T Notes to Financial Statements (# coniinves) ~ —2—%4#+—A=+—H 31 December 2010

8. 1A%
17 T8 TF] 36 W K JE R Y B IR AR R R AR B A
0.00001%E2.75% (= F ZJL4E % : 0.0001%
£0.15%) ©

9. FFEKMEGK

%I Bk A Bk B AR A 3R 0 1 1 0.24% B
30% (ZFFIES ¢ 0.24% F30%) °

Placements with Other Banks

Placements with other banks earned effective interest
rates ranging from 0.00001% to 2.75% (2009: 0.0001%

to 0.15%) per annum.

Loans and Advances to Customers

Loans and advances to customers earned interest

income at effective interest rates ranging from 0.24%
to 30.00% (2009: 0.24% to 30.00%) per annum.

2010 2009

Kt et WM T WP ToT

Note MOP’000 MOP’000

KH S

(restated)

% PRk ik Loans and advances to customers 40,447,430 34,475,688

[E3-%/ Trade bills 7,268,705 2,656,853
BEEEHR - B RRE Gross loans, advances and trade

EIRAH bills to customers 47,716,135 37,132,541

HE TR S, Accrued interests 132,218 72,172

47,848,353 37,204,713

i ;B A Less: impairment allowances 6 (124,899) ( 88,549)

47,723,454 37,116,164
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BB FiE T Notes to Financial Statements (# coniinves) ~ —2—%4#+—A=+—H 31 December 2010

B - Bk S R AR R & A An analysis of the gross amount of loans, advances
T and trade bills to customers based on the usage is as
follows:

2010 2009

WM T WP ToT

MOP’000 MOP’000

T¥ - HEMESEEE Industrial, commercial and financial

purposes 36,906,762 32,168,063

fEHA Individual 3,540,668 2,307,625

Yo mE Trade finance 7,268,705 2,656,853

HERH -~ B pEEIEL%  Gross loans, advances and trade bills
to customers 47,716,135 37,132,541

T A0 B — B U A 4 B R 31 BR B I Gross impaired loans before
PG A T Bk A A deduction of individually assessed

impairment allowance 67,281
N2 —FFE+_H=+—H K56 H The fair values of collaterals that the Bank held
BE L U B 2k B HE 5 AN o e A R P R relating to impaired loans at 31 December 2010
EFAEEL(CEEAEBRMENT—H amounted to MOPS59 million (2009: MOP61 million).
HIT) o HLf S R AT R E o The collaterals mainly consisted of bank deposits and

properties.

10. R DA Rl i LS Bul A% 10. Financial Assets at Fair Value through

T 2% 1Y 4 & Profit or Loss
2010 2009
WM e WM T
MOP’000 MOP’000

HREAUAARMEMEF R B Financial assets at fair value through profit

SBEEEAE YRR or loss:
Sl
EHEEES Quoted debt securities 3,594,288 5,254,279

PLEEAT BB MrdR € & DL/ Financial assets at fair value through profit
RAEEFNE B EE A or loss analysed by category of issuer as

A R 4 Rl follows:
W s
BUR R B8 27 Government debt securities 1,551,631 720,488
UNGIE: | Corporate entities 177,472 718,891
SRAT B At 455 Rl B A 50 Banks and other financial institutions 1,865,185 3,814,900
3,594,288 5,254,279
B A 48 8 2 DL oS SR E A s BB Bt A& B All financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

HRZEMEERFHHURZRGH - were held for trading purpose.
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11. A2 HHERE 11. Held-to-maturity Investments
2010 2009
WM T L WM T
MOP’000 MOP’000

DAY Bl st B ARy Held-to-maturity investments, at amortised

A ERW A RE cost:

L Quoted 1,677,488 2,349,607

B 27 Treasury bills 999,997 799,999
W : PG A Less: impairment allowances (135,646) (135,646)

2,541,839 3,013,960

AT RN DA BI9T Held-to-maturity investments at amortised
Bt BEARFFA £5]  cost analysed by category of issuer as

HIHMBE - follows:
B Government debt securities 999,997 799,999
NEE Corporate entities 239,599 283,166
SRAT B oAl 4 AR A 2 Banks and other financial institutions 1,302,243 1,930,795

2,541,839 3,013,960
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12. WA RE 12. Available-for-sale Investments
2010 2009
WW T8 WP T
MOP’000 MOP’000
gk ERRE Available-for-sale investments:
L Quoted:
BHEBR > UARMMERT  Debt securities, at fair value 4,277,754 1,856,564
E /Sy Unquoted:
AR BT R AR Equities, at cost 19,630 63,775
I : PRAE A Less: impairment allowances (9,454) (42,387)
10,176 21,388
4,287,930 1,877,952
R ITEE AN L& Available-for-sale investments analysed by
MIE : category of issuer as follows:
B Government debt securities 397,749 _
A Corporate entities 338,754 519,715
SRAT B At 455 Rl B A 5 Banks and other financial institutions 3,551,427 1,358,237
4,287,930 1,877,952
T A S 2 A A TS 2P 35 e The fair values of quoted available-for-sale debt
E o HARMAR A SEst B2 IE B vl iy investments were based on quoted market prices. The
EIRE » AT REEERARE - unquoted available-for-sale equity investments for

which the fair values cannot be measured reliably,

have been stated at cost less any impairment loss.
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13, W& 2 13. Subsidiaries
FH S A Rl FEIB I T ¢ Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:
T AT
JHH GRU A AT fE ARGATHEA A 23 bo EL S 3
Nominal Percentage
value of of equity
Place of issued ordinary attributable Principal
Name incorporation share capital to the Bank activities
Hi% kS
Direct Indirect
REAEA AR B biedis R E/ES
Seng Heng Development Company Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 — Property holding
TH QRM) BERAH AR W b i REE
ICBC (Macau) Capital Limited Macau MOP50,000,000 99.60 0.4 Investment
management
T8 (M) BIRESEARHA AR W b il BRI SR
ICBC (Macau) Pension Fund Management ~ Macau MOP30,000,000 99.93 0.07 Pension fund
Company Limited management
14. ¥ - BEH Bkt 14. Property, Plant and Equipment
Y 1) i L
ZR-REFZ A= BV 55 KH A ft
Furniture Motor
Land and and vehicles and
buildings fixtures equipment Total
WeRTE  RMRTC  RM®TC RPIRTC
31 December 2010 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
5% Cost:
FEZZNEFTZH=1—H At31 December 2009 and at
Ih=F—FHE—H—H 1 January 2010 214,029 107,543 160,826 482,398
wE Additions — 16,873 13,865 30,738
B Disposals — (13,982) (68,169) (82,151)
EF-F-FE+"H=1—H At31 December 2010 214,029 110,434 106,522 430,985
R Accumulated depreciation:
EEZZNEFTH=1—H At31 December 2009 and at
Ih_2—F4F—H—H 1 January 2010 46,029 66,740 124,656 237,425
ENFHR Provided during the year 4,005 6,030 14,861 24,896
Hi £ 1 o] Disposals = (11,781) (67,039) (78,820)
FF—FHEFTZA=1+—H At 31 December 2010 50,034 60,989 72,478 183,501

ZR—FEFT"H=+—H  Netcarrying amount:
MR T 4 At 31 December 2010 163,995 49,445 34,044 247,484
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ZR-RETZHA=T—H 31 December 2010

BHR HL
I 52 4 B
4 b B b2 Furniture Motor
Land and and vehicles and £k
buildings fixtures equipment Total
“ZFhAETFH 31 December 2009 WME¥TE BM¥Te WP T BRMN%T
=+—H MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
AR Cost:
BEORE/)N\F At 31 December 2008
+=ZA=+—H and at 1 January 2009
B REE
—H—H 214,029 97,753 153,241 465,023
WE Additions — 10,260 12,534 22,794
JRE Disposals — (470) (4,949) (5,419)
22RFIETA At 31 December 2009
=1+—H 214,029 107,543 160,826 482,398
Bt - Accumulated
depreciation:
E2ORFNETTH At 31 December 2008
=t+—HAZZEZ and at 1 January 2009
SuE—H—H 42,024 59,968 111,154 213,146
ENTHE Provided during the
year 4,005 6,819 16,769 27,593
it . W [ Disposals — (47) (3,267) (3,314)
ZEZFNETZA At 31 December 2009
=+—H 46,029 66,740 124,656 237,425
—EFhETAH Net carrying amount:
=— H iR E At 31 December 2009 168,000 40,803 36,170 244,973

ACER Y - AR B AT

A geographical analysis of the Group’s land and

buildings is as follows:

2010

W WT 0

M Macau

MOP’000

-|!a 168,000

2009
WP TG
MOP’000
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15. #EHE

“E-REFZHET—H

15. Investment Property

31 December 2010

ERFNFETH=ZT—HEK

At 31 December 2009 and at 1 January 2010

R -RF—H—H

B AR Cost

2l Accumulated depreciation
HR THT 5 Net carrying amount

ERFAFETZA=ZT—HR
ZEFE-AH > KR
GEE
AAEFHR T

At 31 December 2009 and at
1 January 2010, net of accumulated depreciation

Depreciation provided during the year

Fo2—-BELHE—H
1l By 85

At 31 December 2010, net of accumulated depreciation

ER-FFTZHA=+—H

At 31 December 2010

ZER-FEFZHAZ+T—H 31 December 2010

WM
MOP’000

67,943
(9,082)

58,861

58,861

(717)

58,144

AR Cost 67,943
it Accumulated depreciation (9,799)
R THT B Net carrying amount 58,144
WM T
“EEEFA=ET—H 31 December 2009 MOP’000
2FENE+_H=1+—HK At31 December 2008 and at 1 January 2009
“ZEFNFE—H—H
A Cost 67,943
Hutir#s Accumulated depreciation (8,365)
M T 3 A Net carrying amount 59,578
2EFE)NE+"_H=1+—HM At31 December 2008 and at
“EFNFE—H—H > kR 1 January 2009, net of accumulated depreciation
Ry 59,578
ARG Depreciation provided during the year (717)
E2FZFNET+_H=+—H > At31 December 2009, net of accumulated depreciation
kxR at e 58,861
E_RFNETA=T—H At 31 December 2009
A Cost 67,943
Bty Accumulated depreciation (9,082)
HR THT 3 Net carrying amount 58,861

GREDEMPES > LR HIMHES B R
o H_F—FFET_HA=Z+—HHAREME
W T 59,582,387 76 ( Z B & JLAF K WL
75,324,919 78) °

The investment property is situated in Hong Kong
and is held under medium term lease. The fair value
of the investment property on 31 December 2010 was
MOP59,582,387 (2009: MOP75,324,919).
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16. WL

16. Deposits from Banks

2010 2009
BT BT o0
MOP’000 MOP’000

BTG I MERIT458%  Money market acceptances and bank

balances 4,061,182 2,929,391
17. &P 17. Deposits from Customers
2010 2009
WM T WM T
MOP’000 MOP’000
HMEREERIER Demand deposits and current accounts 4,823,446 3,458,377
fEE R Savings deposits 9,164,748 6,226,195
& B 5B AE R Time and call deposits 42,495,917 32,935,137

56,484,111 42,619,709

i % P Akl A M Bl s B AR - % P
1y B B A7 20 P ) B R AR A R BB 48 0.01% &
5.5% (ZFFENER0.01%E5.5%) °

All deposits from customers are measured at amortised
cost. The interest-bearing deposits from customers bore
effective interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 5.5%
(2009: 0.01% to 5.5%) per annum.



S i
Annual Report 2010

INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED H Bl T. % R 47 (M ) B4 & IR A &

81

Bty Financial Statements (4 Continued)

BB B 5E Notes to Financial Statements (4 conrinued)

ZR-FEFTZH=+—H 31 December 2010

18. BB 18. Deferred Tax
WEIERCIE G A N B EARESTFR T ¢ The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
during the year are as follows:
BB S BEIE B e Deferred tax assets
HEhUAR
s B
HEGHA
WML 4 RoIE
ZAWYEN  FAWHY Wik HHFM
REBLEH WM BEMERN it it
Unrealised loss Impairment Impairment
on financial allowance allowance  Provision for
assets at fair on held-to-  on available-  compensation
through maturity for-sale to Octave
profit or loss investments investments  note holders Total
WMRTE  WAMTX BPBTx ®MWTx A% TR
MOP’000 MOP000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
2R-FE--H At 1 January 2010
AR AR Deferred tax charged to the income
statement during the year
EZR-RETZA
=+—H At 31 December 2010 16,277
Deferred tax liabilities
BB LTI T
SEEMEEE  WAERERE RS SRR it
Revaluation Excess of
reserve of impairment Accelerated
available-for-sale allowances in tax Revaluation
investments other reserves depreciation of derivatives Total
WARTE  WMWTE  WM%TE O WPRTR  WA%TR
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP*000
Erie S il At 1 January 2010 14m
A BB R4 Deferred tax charged to the income
statement during the year (3,934)
ARG R ERHIE Deferred tax charged to the equity
during the year 1178
22F-FE+FTA=+—H  At31 December 2010 12,956
FF-FHEFTA=F—H  Netdeferred tax assets at 31 December
TFEEA TR 2010 15,076
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YR #1E BLIH B Deferred tax assets
HEBPAR
feifiit i B
Je @A
I 47
ZEWERER ZEMH M
BT R RUBUEH SO it
Unrealised loss Impairment
on financial allowance
assets at fair on held-to-
Revaluation through maturity
of derivatives profit or loss investments Total
WMHT T WIHT T WIWT WM
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
Z2ZFFNE-H—H At 1 January 2009 2,202 — 16,277 18,479

HHERABRLFEEG S Deferred tax charged to the

income statement during the

year (2,202) 9,100 = 6,398
E 25| Ko gy | At 31 December 2009
=+—H — 9,100 16,277 25377
B SE B L1 A5 Deferred tax liabilities

ki bt

SuEiEE  WAERERE  AdhEEE SRR it
Revaluation Excess of
reserve of impairment Accelerated
available-for-sale allowances in tax Revaluation
investments other reserves depreciation of derivatives Total
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
EZRRNE-A-A At 1 January 2009 4,534 454 4557 — 13,634
BERAERAEE Deferred tax charged to the income
statement during the year (219) 325 933 10 1,049
R R AU Deferred tax charged to the equity during
the year 29 — — — 29
E-RRNETCA=TH At 31 December 2009 4,344 4,868 5,490 10 14,712

FTEBNETZAZSF—HEF  Net deferred tax assets at 31 December
BAERREE 2009 10,665
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19. JBAK 19. Share Capital
2010 2009
JBe 43 4 JBe 3 45
Number Number
of shares of shares

BE ¢ Authorised:
—EE > BB 1,00078 1,000,000 shares of MOP1,000 each
b kics 1,000,000 1,000,000
Ity Y
CEITIECHE Issued and fully paid: Number TS W T 0
of shares MOP’000
EEFNAF—H—H As at 1 January 2009 150,000 150,000
“EZFNFELH T —HE  Issued on 11 July 2009
7 132,121 132,121
E2_FFNFETA As at 31 December 2009 and
Et+—HEZF R4 1 January 2010
—H—H 282,121 282,121
—ZF-FN\HA=TH Issued on 20 August 2010
BT 179,073 179,073
2_F-FF+_H As at 31 December 2010
=+—H 461,194 461,194
20. Yt 20. Legal Reserve
PR 2 S8R4T AR B 2 ] » ANERAT S Ho AR IR Under the Macau banking and insurance legislation, the
P92 M@ A R AN e A AR 2 AR B R E Bank and its Macau subsidiaries are required to transfer
N2t 2 HRIER A B L > HE SR to a legal reserve an amount equal to a minimum of
& 2 B M IR AR SRAT B H AR WY 2 B R A ] 20% of its annual profit after tax until the amount of
AZHOBRITACHERAZ B ZH AR - the reserve is equal to 50% of their respective issued
A8 dERE > R O R AR R AR AL B AR BB B A and fully paid up share capital. Thereafter, transfers
BSESZTKE » HEZEMESZ SHHEER must continue at a minimum annual rate of 10%
AERAT S AR VAP 2 B B 2 W) 4% 3 B8 47 M 4% until the reserve is equal to the Bank’s and its Macau
TEEAE IE o [ YA 4 8 AR Y ) B G 2 S subsidiaries’ respective issued and fully paid up share
BRIEL T A ATAES YR o 6 45 7 B B it o 3 42 capital. This reserve is only distributable in accordance
K bR s g AR EBR A o with certain limited circumstances prescribed by statute

and will be transferred from the annual profit after tax
upon the approval by the shareholders in the annual

general meeting.
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21. St fafd 21. Contingent Liabilities
2010 2009
WM T WM¥Toe
MOP’000 MOP’000
ARk B R Undrawn loan commitments 15,701,334 8,212,710
£ BR Guarantees 1,376,135 1,192,543
Fa % 5 BH B AR AR Liabilities under letters of credit on behalf
of customers 130,156 262,175
17,207,625 9,667,428
22. BERBRW 22. Operating Lease Commitments

ACER ] DL AR B & HRAR A e BT o DR
P Z AR — 2 )\EARE o AL E AR AR
7 AT Ji 6 v A B 2 I WO 4 2 B T L

The Group leases land and buildings under operating
lease arrangement with leases negotiated for terms

ranging from 1 to 8 years. The Group’s had total future

Ik commitments lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

2010 2009
WM T WMo
MOP’000 MOP’000
1A Within one year 28,971 18,120
1-54E(8) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 83,000 44,288
5P E After five years 12,124 14,845
124,095 77,253
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23. 4w A K B
A [ H A BRT 2 4t TR DL AR 5 B B o) &R
BAMEERZ R BN E I -

30 £ 440 i 6 5 A — TR Y D 22— o THT A
ZB & -

I A A I — R 2R H B DA E R AR Y
ST HRZ AHEH -

23. Derivative Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Group uses the derivative financial instruments for
trading or for hedging future fluctuations in interest

rates and foreign exchange rates.

Swaps are contracts in which two parties exchange
cash flows on a specified notional amount for a

predetermined period.

Forwards are contractual obligations to buy or sell

a financial instrument on a future date at a specified

price.
2010
R R
kot ] ¥ | =K
Notional Notional
amount Assets amount Liabilities

RPWTC WM TC RPWTC WM T
MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000

H R ELH Forward currency contracts 6,321,200 64,412 14,841,176
Fll 2w 45 Interest rate swap — — 192,379
IR R AL Forward rate agreements — — -
I 2R R Interest rate options 40,079 14,929 —
6,361,279 79,341 15,033,555
2009
HEBEY Fg 03]
&8 -0:3 £ ] £ i
Notional Notional
amount Assets amount Liabilities
WPWTx WP Te BP%Te  wM% T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
I BEEH Forward currency contracts 1,329,067 8,945 1,296,235 3,079
I 2R P 1 Interest rate swap — — 295,549 17,478
IR R EH Forward rate agreements — — _ _
1] 2RI BE Interest rate options 39,939 13,151 — —

1,369,006 22,096 1,591,784 20,557
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24.

5>

e

TEFRRTIGR 5 2 &8 TR Z A RAETIH 37
et AR P 2 A o R A
P R B EAM s mst & A S
e i 6 % B A B AR AR

ik 34 ] < bl L 3 R R i 5 32 B (B A
AN RE G R TR > ooy SufE A AR A A AR T
HeEsE o

T2k A A B % B BRI & i R AT BUAG (4
e B H A MG o FiE SRl R AR 28
R bSO RE 23 $ % -

B SO B R

A58 AL 2 A0 M P 0F 5 0% 51 4 i TR 43
IR E#k

T AE I R T S M JBUAL B
AR R ORAEHE) 3

M5 > A BT 2 HiZ
ARMEAERBEZ2UHRA
A EZ KRB E WS E R

5 FH 3 I 5 77 v L5 T 5 AR B
HEBYZHIT -

24.

R -FEFZHZ+—H 31 December 2010

Fair Value and Fair Hierarchy
Fair value

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on market prices quoted at the end of
the reporting period. For financial assets, the current
bid price is quoted; for financial liabilities, the current

ask price is quoted.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation

techniques.

Derivative financial assets and liabilities are recorded
at fair values obtained from discounted cash flow
model valuation techniques. The amounts of derivative
financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 23

above.
Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining
and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: other techniques in which all inputs having
a significant effect on reported fair values
are based on definite information directly
or indirectly observable in the market;
Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have
a significant effect on their recorded fair
value that are not based on observable

market data.
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TRIEA ARG FE A REAIRZ S TR

The following table shows an analysis of financial

HEAT T ¢ instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair
value hierarchy:
W W W=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
FEoR—BAETH At 31 December 2010 WM¥TE  WPI¥TE WmM%T
=+—H MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
B Y43 Financial assets
ALY - Available-for-sale investments:
— AEEESR — Debt securities 1,297,214 2,980,540
B A REMEIRH  Financial assets at fair value
HgEmhul A B BN through profit or loss
LAl R
— AEEER — Debt securities 2,008,651 1,585,637
i Ll Derivative financial assets — 79,341
3,305,865 4,645,518
Ak Financial liabilities
itk amh A R Derivative financial liabilities (83,751)
B B BEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
#EoRBHAET A At 31 December 2009 WMMWTE WMWTE WMWTL
=+—H MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
A% Financial assets
ARG - Available-for-sale investments:
— AR — Debt securities 1,031,971 824,593 —
HE BV A REMGEIRH  Financial assets at fair value
I sEmhyE A B B through profit or loss
AR
— BEEES — Debt securities 2,397,062 2,857,217 —
Tk Al & Derivative financial assets — 22,096 —
3,429,033 3,703,906 —
S Financial liabilities
ik EpaE Derivative financial liabilities — (20,557) —
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Transfers between level 1 and 2

The following table shows transfers between level 1 and
level 2 of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets

and liabilities which are recorded at fair value:

BB — NS
Transfers from level 1 to level 2
2010 2009
WPMBT T WMo
MOP’000 MOP’000

B A RMEMEFHR H  Financial assets at fair value through profit

HBmit AEWEREN  orloss
S A

=Eig e Debt securities 271,369 _
Wl B R E Available-for-sale investments
=Lig Fie Debt securities 320,648 _

592,017 =

PIAEF LGB 5y > DA bR A 58—
PR > JE O S B A U AT Bl Y

A4 SREAERA RS A -

A B 2 Se A T B A R

(1) TE IR 277 PUBE I 175K D R OF 1
k4

% B B 8 B AR K = 2 Su A SR T 6
G o R BRI A SAEIEE & B
ZRRMERPTBLR > KA 2
HZ R > P7BIR AL G i vt i
HIR BT A % S ARk 3 — 4 B > i
FoAtiwt 2 RMELE R IR EE o

The above financial assets were transferred from level 1
to level 2 as they ceased to be actively traded during the
year and fair values were consequently obtained using

valuation techniques using observable market inputs.

During the year, there were no transfers from level 2 to

level 1.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

(1) Balances and placements with banks and

monetary authority

The fair values of floating rate placements and
overnight deposits are their carrying amounts.
While the fair value of fixed interest placements
are based on the discounted cash flows using the
prevailing money-market interest rates and their
remaining period up to the date of maturity, the
estimated fair values are approximately equal to
their carrying values since all such placements
are due in less than one year.
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2) F R - Wk R B 5 R (2) Loan, advances and trade bills
EEER -~ Bk KB 5% LI R e Loans, advances and trade finance are net of
BHERIVIR - BRI % P ER KL EK allowances for impairment. All items, except for
DA s IR EIEE S AR SR - AREH a very insignificant portion of loans and advances
% A HE T G A R A% > TR R - BaK to customers, bear interest at a floating rate.
FREGEBZARME > YR ABEHLEA R The Group has assessed the of fair value loan,
BRI AR ERAER - advances and trade bills, after taking into account

the relevant market interest rates, and has noted
that the total fair value is not materially different

from the total carrying value.

3 HEIHHLEE (3) Held-to-maturity investments
FREIWHBREZ A RMEEETSHE The fair values of the held-to-maturity
A o investments are directly quoted from the market.

i 42 78 ARBUE  REEZKE

Carrying Unrecognised

value Fair value gain

2010 2010 2010

RMWTe WPARTE  RAWTR

MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

FHZ 2 ARG Held-to-maturity investments 2,541,839 2,544,526 2,687

i 4 78 ARBUME KRN

Carrying Unrecognised

value Fair value gain

2009 2009 2009

WPWTE  WM%TE BMI%T

MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

HHEEFHHMEE Held-to-maturity investments 3,013,960 3,014,628 668

(4) RN (i 6y s PP B (4) Ungquoted available-for-sale equity investments
A A B W) AL Y A ) R 2R M R DL R The unquoted available-for-sale equity
21 B AR M 5 A\ B investments have been stated at cost less any

impairment loss.
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25:

(5) FHPRAFEH

JERERE 2 H 2 B R AERZ AR
a5 R - BA WS ERENE P
SR 3 A2 B A A H O S0 A ME 52 3R 65 B30
H M Z 07 48 2 F 3 Bl 81 B0 4 i 2wt
B o AHH SIS 2 B — Bt
WA G D — 4 > 0O Ao fE HE SR
A o

(6) MEMKIT ~ HEA I BB A 4%

R I E A AL AR A SRS
PR AR w2 AU 0L S R T

42 b BB BB A Py H BLAIBOR

BT THUAN > ABEEEEFA ST R
A % PR BGRB8 5 IRER U AR
A s HUC A B st A E IR AR 2 S R
R FEBIY A RE  BleRENE
=% .

ACEE 7 PR A 16 R AR A A G 5 R K
T 0 B 0 S AR A R E i DA B PR A e
il A4 2 2 ) 23 o A T 3 L i

25.

R -FEFZHZ+—H 31 December 2010

(5)  Deposits from banks and customers

The estimated fair value of deposits and balances
with no stated maturity and those bearing floating
rates are their carrying values. The fair value of
fixed interest-bearing deposits from customers
and other banks without quoted market price is
based on discounted cash flows using the interest
rates for new debts with similar remaining
maturity and, since their maturity is normally
less than one year from the end of the reporting
period, their fair values are approximately equal

to their carrying values.
(6) Receivables and other assets and other liabilities

The estimated fair value of the other assets and
other liabilities, which are normally non-interest
bearing, are approximately equal to their carrying

value.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise loans, advances and trade bills to
customers, deposits from banks and customers, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-
sale investments, held-to-maturity investments and cash

and short term deposits.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions,
including principally interest rate swaps, interest rate
options and forward currency contracts. The purpose is
to manage the interest rate and currency risks arising

from the Group’s operations and its sources of finance.
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AR B AT B SR i A B 5 8 4851 > B b A
W B S SR o T 2 L o R R R LA
P Wk 7 BRI R - Hi
Ho B P AR By o A B 51 B4R B 7 DL AR GIE
FOAR e Bl T R E o 3 o 1 R A L
W A L7 9 e A e i SR e Je B o E e
R H o £ 5 L B B o 9 TR
R~ 2R~ B R PR 3 £ 3 A R G L
T g e A o i = 40 0 e

ACHE R A 2 S b TR 32 2 i 35 B (B
A W R i e ) 3% L e )~ L e e 3 5B L
Bt o 2 A B A A R BSR4
TR\ o A R R BRI A0 R o A5 B % JEL AT
e TR 2w ORI A B ik M 2.4 3% o

(2) TEEE

i 35 R i 355 A/ I % ) 5 I e <5 T L ¢
Z T S A A A A 2 s AR

B bR B

A5 T 7 32 W T A5 A BEE N 5% 0 1) 3 3L
WMBRU KRB EREZ L - AEEHD
BOE T AW R R > A H IR
e 2 PR o B 4 A PR o

The Group has written risk management policies and
guidelines, which set out its overall business strategies,
its tolerance for risk and its general risk management
philosophy, and has established processes to monitor
and control hedging transactions in a timely and
accurate manner. Such written policies are reviewed
annually to ensure that the Group’s policies arid
guidelines are appropriate and adhered to. The board of
directors is responsible for the overall risk management
approach and for approving the risk strategies and
principles. The Asset and Liability Committee has
the responsibility for developing risk strategies and
implementing principles, frameworks, policies and
limits. It is responsible for managing and monitoring
fundamental risk issues and to make relevant risk

decisions.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are market risk (i.e. foreign currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
board of directors reviews and establishes policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation
to derivatives are set out in note 2.4 to the financial

statements.

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from
movements in observable market variables such

as foreign exchange rates and interest rates.

Foreign currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of
fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency
exchange rates on its financial positions and cash
flows. The Group has set limits on positions by
currency. Positions are independently monitored

against the approved limits on a daily basis.
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AR 2 AR WA wa A R An analysis of the currency concentration
BIAMNES I Z B HEPHRSFWT ¢ positions of the financial assets, financial

liabilities and forward foreign exchange contracts

of the Group is as follows:

ik L S Jofb st
MOP HKD UsD Others Total

—E-FEFZAH 31 December 2010 (MOP million)

=+—H

(VRM% : H)
i3 Assets
RERBHERR Cash and balances with banks and

FRERERER  deposits with monetary authority 6523
R Placements with other banks 6,160
B F S sk Loans and advances to customers k 41,723

HEHUARBEMEG  Financial assets at fair value through
RELEHHAE profit or loss

HEBHEMEE
A ERE Available-for-sale investments
BHEEMAMEE  Held-to-maturity investments
it ma & Derivative financial assets

[ E &N N3 Receivables and other assets

ff Liabilities
% Ftiak Deposits from customers
W5 Deposits from banks
it 4 b £ % Derivative financial liabilities
FEfH &4 AL Debt issued and borrowed funds _
BTk Certificates of deposit issued 480
HAbE & Other liabilities 3 102 753
16,024 5,421 64,893
B Net position 11,923 (433) 6,431
EHINEAH Forward foreign exchange contracts
HE net notional position

elizor Currency swap
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ZR BT ZHA=T—H 31 December 2010

ikl L G b st
MOP HKD USD Others Total
“EFNEFZA 31 December 2009 (MOP million)
=t-H
(WMo B
Bk Assets
ReRRTHERR Cash and balances with banks and
HREEE R deposits with monetary authority 1,270 874 34 174 2352
FHR ¥ Placements with other banks — 886 695 — 1,581
%P S LK Loans and advances to customers 2,160 16,973 17,948 35 37,116
HEHUAREMEG  Financial assets at fair value through
B H A profit or loss
SR ERE = 3,431 1,464 359 5,254
TR AR E Available-for-sale investments - 629 1,247 2 1,878
BAZAMAMRE  Held-to-maturity investments — 870 1,344 800 3,014
itk & RA & Derivative financial assets — — 17 5 22
TEMCH R A% Receivables and other assets 60 153 76 1 290
3,490 23,816 22,825 1,376 51,507
fifd Liabilities
R Deposits from customers 5,867 21,556 14,007 1,190 42,620
BT Deposits from banks 35 2,889 5 — 2,929
fik e Derivative financial liabilities - = 19 2 21
TER 5 Debt issued and borrowed funds
UNEA = 2,001 = = 2,001
A Other liabilities 160 317 138 2 617
6,062 26,763 14,169 1,194 48,188
N Net position (2,572) (2,947) 8,656 182 3319
EMSMESH Forward foreign exchange contracts
B net notional position = = 3 (€)] =
Bl Currency swap - 1,597 (2,219) 627 5
SR T AT Sensitivity Analysis

7 45 [ T 3 D B R B 2 9 R R SR
TRHEZ Bl RG4S - B PR Rk
BN B R 3 T P A KO I A 2 R
JE R o v T o R R AR I T 2 B
R\ BEARAY o W 4 2 B UK B S AT

The Group has currency exposures arise from
cash and short term funds, loans and advances to
customers, deposits from banks and customers
which are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars which have been pegged
to Patacas. The board of directors considered
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk
was minimal and a sensitivity analysis was not

presented as a result.
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P

ESNCPEL:) S ES 3N 2 P
BleRERER TR A R EL: -

AR5 T 7 S W T 355 ) 3% 0 ) S
USSR a2 B S SN A
5 B 1T 394 0 R A o A AR B
b 2 o i AT B o %S RS
4 M8 29 AL R HEAT R AE > BEAb > A
ASSR M 2 5 R A B E SRR o

TREURA ARG A RS > B B
T W A R B A B (NTD)
ZURBESAT o W E WS F A BB
M5 S 2 S > TR R TR L B A
S H Ay A SR B D o

2010
T 30145 1 5 A 5 )
Change in
projected net
E-3 ] interest income
Changes in BT
basis points MOP’000

(23,529)
23,529

AT o %35 8 B3t i 355 L R ) )R S8 T
— 3 g A B KA (PRI B AR ]) > BEBX
AR DA A4 1] 2 o e A B 4 5 ) B 4 4
Vo S5 A R 5 B o Sl B 0 A o o A
L R

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that
changes in interest rates will affect future cash

flows or the fair values of financial instruments.

The Group takes on exposure to the effects of
fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on its financial position and cash
flows. Interest margins may increase or decrease
as a result of such changes. Interest rate risk
is managed within risk limits approved by
management. Limits are set for each maturity
band, in addition, to an aggregate limit, for the

aggregate position of the Group.

The table below shows the sensitivity analysis
on net interest income (“NII”’) of a reasonably
possible movement in interest rates; i.e., a 50
basis points increase/decrease in current interest
rates. The figures represent the effect of the pro
forma movements in net interest income based
on the scenario projected and the Group’s current

interest rate risk profile.

2009
A R ASEE)
Change in
projected net
H SR interest income
Changes in WP
basis points MOP’000
+50 (26,777)
-50 26,777

Mainly for managing the above market risks, a
risk management team (“the team”), is established
to monitor investment and treasury activities in
accordance with the Group’s risk management
guidelines and to report exceptions to the

management.
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Wi 7 e A e 5 SR B R (kK
F - R RRE - ARRED kRS
HEWOAS > LS R HBARITZ
BEA ST KPP Z B > PP R
B B Jel it > B B 5% i 00 4 ) DA R AR AT
ZEEREEAS > BRI E RO
T A L el 1 KB S SR e % e i A L
#73]

BRATL I I T D0 S AC 4R B 2 ¥ B Ak
kA o 538 BBl Wi A o B8 S A B = L i
IR > ST 7522 IRF 1 4 LR 1 ) st -

S [ PR F DA 566 IR sl 2 i 2 L o B
A (T ) e £ 1) e AL JRE 0l 5 B i
Bl 2R - 1 ) A 4R
2 T L g R ) 2R e o e i AR L
B > T2 IR b Wi (AR SR B —
FEWAR) o FHEAE IR R O KF (AR SR
BRAE 5 Z It TG DK > B EH
] (A 3% 1+ 22 5 B R ) 2 78
AHEBCR IR o 9 OOt AR 42 I 2 B
A AR B S B FR > A 5L B A
fEZ B GV -

JE i B A L B < A R 5
> AH R BT BR 2 A s i A HE B A
BGRB9S
2T T B 58 2 4 ) T R R AR VT R
BlZ 8L o I8 R B i 5 AT 2 B 5%
Lok Z AL > S8 T A R 2 E
B o SR H 45 310D B AT
RZ5HNPHE > BERERZREMEZ
THOLT > BhF A 0 AT RE SRS R A o it
Bb > A L R W B v TR
A% Fr A 5 T B > AT R Al 2 BT 1
Wi 2 T 35 BB o S A > R i M S S8 R
SALAE 5 e vk IR B < T BE A b > HR R IE
W T UL P JRE Sy 0 T AR U T T 2
Fi ]

In addition to a continuous monitoring risk limits
(e.g. stop loss limits, position limits, credit limits)
and the daily profit or loss of all portfolios,
the team is also responsible for performing
high level reviews of the Bank’s portfolios for
optimisation of risk and return, and for keeping
track of the changes in the market as well as in
the composition of the assets and liabilities of
the Bank. Where necessary, the team will make
recommendations to the management for changes

of strategies and risk guidelines.

The team reviews risk elements associated
with investments in view of changes in market
conditions or in the asset/liability conditions
of the Group and makes recommendations to

management if necessary.

Risk management techniques such as Value-
at-Risk (“VaR”) based on historical simulation
and portfolio stress testing, are used to identify,
measure and control foreign currency risk and
interest rate risks of the Group’s investments.
VaR measures the expected maximum loss over a
given time interval (i.e. 10 trading days) at a 95%
confidence level based on historical data of one
year. The board sets a limit on total VaR of the

Group and monitor VaR on a daily basis.

VaR is a statistical measure of risks and has
limitations associated with the assumptions
employed. Historical simulation assumes that
actual observed historical changes in market
indices, such as interest rates, foreign exchange
rates, reflect possible future changes. This
implies that the approach is vulnerable to sudden
changes in market behaviour. The use of a 10-
day holding period assumes that the positions
can be unwounded in 10 trading days and the
holding period may be insufficient at times of
severe illiquidity. Also, VaR does not necessarily
reflect all aspects of risks that affect the price
of financial instruments and may underestimate
real market risk exposure. In addition, VaR does
not factor in the possibility of catastrophic risk
but the use of stress testing for abnormal market

conditions can mitigate this limitation.
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AR A B W TE BRI T -
REMEBEA S
T3
Average
WERT
MOP’000
FE 2R B Foreign exchange risk
MR KM Interest rate and equity
B B price risk
R R g
MAHE  Total VaR on trading
Wt fE portfolio
HREGPEREH G
TR
Average
BT
MOP’000
TEE A e Foreign exchange risk
g Interest rate risk
E L)
BAGH  Total VaR on non-
Jo e 1 trading portfolio 17,325

1181 31 e PR 3 2 R B A 2 AR XD %
W B 3K e B i A S R AR 2 B K
18 o 3 R B AR A 2 S A S R B
R AR > PRI e PR 3 2 T 2 B B o
BEAE % TUALRKHE o BEAh > B4R A B R
B BB R = > i Z
B J AR JE e (BB AR 6 TRl — H B o

BB #Eth Financial Statements (4 Continued)
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2010

B
Highest

WPRT L
MOP*000

15,246

9,736

14,665

2010

B
Highest

WP T
MOP*000

8,716

23,157

22,192

ZER-FEFZHAZ+T—H 31 December 2010

The VaRs for investments of the Group during

the year were as follows:

Trading portfolio
2009
Bk T R i
Lowest Average Highest Lowest
WMWTE WM%TE WPRTT RMWT
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
25,523 33,7137 14,707
8,643 15,149 1,559
27,220 36,699 14,250
Non-trading portfolio
2009
Bkl FifE R Rfk
Lowest Average Highest Lowest
WMBTE  WMRTE WP WP T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
2,007 3,121 1,179
18,886 23,949 10,214
17,835 22,004 10,003

VaR for each risk factor is the independently
derived largest potential loss due to fluctuations
solely in that risk factor. The individual VaR
did not add up to the total VaR as there was
diversification effect due to correlation amongst
the risk factors. Moreover, in respect of the
highest and lowest VaRs during the year, the
highest and lowest VaRs in each market did not

necessarily occur on the same day.
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(b)

i ) P e

T B e B A R R — B S 52 B R )
ZAE DU AR BRI 23T IR S50 B A R H 2
R o T U AGK I R B o AR A 0 A K R R
S > FBLRE O R uALE AR >
BN B & & o Mg HERR
B E REE S o b A B
i {7 12 e v AR TR it 2 T REA
WA B A RS 4 o A
g 43 W6 F % R B A B A AR AR
REJI UL o

(b)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be
unable to meet its payment obligations when they
fall due under normal and stress circumstances.
To limit this risk, management has arranged
diversified funding sources in addition to its
core deposit base, manages assets with liquidity
in mind, and monitors future cash flows and
liquidity on a daily basis. This incorporates
an assessment of expected cash flows and the
availability of high grade collateral which could
be used to secure additional funding if required.
Management monitor the liquidity and solvency

position on a daily and weekly basis respectively.
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AREEMZEE - A KEABERR An analysis of the maturity profile of the Group’s
WA Z DB B T assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities and

undrawn loan commitments is as follows:

PREMA 3EnMA 154 Rits & iy it
More More
than than
Less 3 months 1 year
than and up to and up to Over
3 months 12 months § years § years Undated Total

%4+ 31 December 2010 (MOP

=t-A million)
(WG : )
(3 Assets
BARPAAERR  Cashand balances with
THESER banks and deposits with
pex | monetary authority
Py (TE Placements with other banks
% PR Loans and advances to
customers 1,115

EBDARERG  Financial assets at fair value
BHAZHHA through profit or loss

HEREHAR
i3
Wik ERE Available-for-sale
investments
PHERMAMBE  Held-to-maturity
investments

ik Ame & Derivative financial assets
B R Receivables and other assets

28,947
fifg Liabilities
pdares | Deposits from customers 39,874 16,504 56,484
GEi¢ Deposits from banks 3,821 240 4,061
fit4HAaR Derivative financial
liabilities 48 14 84
TERH AR50 A Debt issued and borrowed
&4 funds 1401 2,001
BMGERE Certificates of deposit issues 4 1,029 1,510
AR Other liabilities 25 753
43823 17,285 2575 64,893
BEE/ (A Net assets/(liabilities) (19,627) (1,599) 26,372 6,431
BEAG Contingent liabilities 1,503 3 1,506
FREIEHM&E  Undrawn loan commitments = 15,019 15,019

BIHABRAE  Total contingent liabilities

and commitments 15,022 16,525
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ZR BT ZHA=T—H 31 December 2010

PREMA 3EDMEA 154 Rt sk AEh it
More More
than than
Less 3 months 1 year
than and up to and up to Over
3 months 12 months § years § years Undated Total
“EFUEFZH 31 December 2009 (MOP
=t+-H million)
(M : BEx)
i Assets
BARMAERR  Cash and balances with
FHESFERER  banks and deposits with
monetary authority 2352 — — — — 2352
B Placements with other banks 1,581 — — — — 1,581
R R Loans and advances to
customers 4473 3,876 12,672 16,147 (52) 37116
REBARER  Financial assets at fair value
BHEEHAAE  through profit or loss
ARGMEmEE 1,895 2374 985 = = 5,54
ik ERE Available-for-sale
investments — 120 1,592 145 U 1,878
FHEHWAMRE  Held-to-manuity
investments 910 570 1,474 60 — 3,014
fitk e mA Derivative financial assets 9 — 13 = - 2
JLIG Y EN N Receivables and other assets 120 13 — — 157 290
11,340 6,953 16,736 16,352 126 51,507
fifk Liabilities
KFtis Deposits from customers 39,522 297 126 = = 42,620
TEZ3) Deposits from banks 2,929 - - - - 2929
Rk 2mAR Derivative financial
liabilities 3 4 14 — — 2
JEf % S A Debt issued and borrowed
263 funds = = 2,011 = = 2,001
AR Other liabilities 39 131 - - 437 617
42,493 3,107 2,151 — 437 48,188
i/ (A6 Net assets/(liabilities) (31,153) 3,846 14,585 1635 (1)) 3319
BHAK Contingent liablities 813 633 5 3 = 1,454
ARMERMAE  Undrawn loan commitments - 8,213 — — — 8213
BRAABRAKRE  Total contingent liabilities
and commitments 813 8,846 5 3 — 9,667
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TREFFRREHREZZN A FEMGES The table below presents the cash flow payables
AR LR 2 T A SR AR by the Group under non-derivative financial
HY BB REE AT ESH T HIET liabilities, derivatives financial liabilities that will
REFEEMNZBERE -  RNBEBEZSE be settled on a net basis and derivative financial
FAAARBIBZBERE » MAL instruments that will be settled on gross basis by
B AR SR TE I 2 R BB B &R B remaining contractual maturities at the end of the
PR A i 8 e B reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the

table are the contractual discounted cash flows,
whereas the Group manages the inherent liquidity

risk based on expected undiscounted cash flows.

DIRZRA 3E0MA 154 Rt s 4 Y] it
More More
than than
Less 3 months 1 year
than and up to and up to Over
3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Undated Total

ZZ-F+2A 31 December 2010 (MOP

=-H million)

(M B
EFti Deposits from customers 39,919 16,514
WERH Deposits from other banks 3,835 242

TR % » A Debt issted, borrowed
BLHBATHE  funds and certificates of

deposit issued

“EZNEFTA December 2009 (MOP
(WM : BHX)  million)

%t Deposits from customers 32,549 7,010 2,982 126 — 42,667
GETd Deposits from banks 2,937 = = = = 2,937
TR % » ff A Debt issued, borrowed
BERBHHEFE  funds and certificates of
deposit issued — 30 76 2,032 — 2,138

35,486 7,040 3,058 2158 — 47,18
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DIRZRA 3E0MA 154 Rt 54 Al it
More More
than than
Less 3 months 1 year
than and up to and up to Over
3 months 12 months § years § years Undated Total

RPEBAH(2010)  Derivatives cash flow
(M7 : AEE)  (2010) (MOP million)

DEEEAMAA4M Derivative financial
T8 instruments

settled on net basis

DA ABMATE 2R Derivative financial

TH instruments

settled on gross basis
ELTN Total inflow 29,986
i Total outflow 29891

RiEBAH(2009)  Derivatives cash flow
(WM : A& (2009) (MOP million)

DWRBAEMATEAE Derivative financial

Th instruments
settled on net basis 4 (6) ®) — (18)
DARERNAS 2% Derivative financial
TA instruments
settled on gross basis
R Total inflow 2,620 = = = = 2,620

i Total outflow (2,625) — — — — (2,625)
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(c) fafembs

15 BB 2y & P B o FAER 5
A I A4 E A 2 LB AR A AR
Wz Bk~ B S T B R -

AREETTH G EREEHEET - U5
B BRREREERE - RRITZE
BERAAEGFREZEY AKX F8
WEE - THHEE - REFEEZRT
BEBZITHAR RS CHEEFE
KB BGR 2 B ARG RE o B B A A A%
B ¥ % B A 15 80 0 BR8£S
BE o 5 BRSO ISR IR AR L 5 &
BURREG & RERafERGE
R RE T At e I B E (400 4 985 T R B
MRS PBE) 5 A B BB EETE
B4y > DI ORAT B0 B 5 B B SX R g o
i o [R5 1 2 45 B M 8 e by 2 o R
MAAE -

A 42 [ — B DL AR B AT B L AR B
B o Bk 3Bk o2 B SR8 AR ARt A > o
Be Tl 1 3 B AR AR UL > B AL B

(©)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or
counterparty in a transaction may default and
arises mainly from lending, trade finance and

treasury activities undertaken by the Group.

The Group has a credit risk management process
to measure, monitor and control credit risk.
The lending authority of the Bank consists of
the credit committee, general manager, credit
department heads, marketing department heads,
chief executive officer and directors who
have extensive banking experience, and have
the ultimate authority in approving loans and
advances to customers. Each level within the
authority hierarchy has its own lending limit
which is specified in the credit memorandum.
The hierarchy of credit authority which approves
credit is in compliance with the Group’s credit
policy; exposures are monitored against credit
limits and other control limits (such as large
exposures and concentration limits); segregation
of duties in key credit functions is in place to
ensure separate credit control and monitoring;
management and recovery of problem credits is

handled by an independent work-out team.

The Group manages its credit risk within a
conservative framework. Its credit policy is

regularly revised, taking into account factors such

BEARRFEEHEE - as prevailing business and economic conditions,
regulatory requirements and its capital resources.
T2 35 A A7 £ B Maximum exposure to credit risk

TRIRREEHIARA FIHH (B4
TR B Z ok fE B o Bk KR
R . T AEAG SR T O e DA S K A B
MR DR EARRP SR

The table below shows the maximum exposure
to credit risk for the components at the end of
the reporting period, including derivatives. The
maximum exposure is based on the carrying
amounts as reported in the statement of financial
position, before the effect of mitigation
through the use of master netting and collateral

agreements.
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5 K Bl o e 1 T3 K L gt e 11
B B
Gross Gross
maximum maximum
exposure exposure
2010 2009
WM T WM¥Toe
MOP’000 MOP’000
<3 dTES Balances with other banks 3,447,491 668,907
RSB M Deposits with monetary authority 2,132,416 1,001,825
ey qCES Placements with other banks 6,159,917 1,580,739
HBEABUAREMFR  Financial assets at fair value through
B s E A HiE profit or loss
1 1 45 i 3,594,288 5,254,279
& PR Bk Loans and advances to customers 47,723,454 37,116,005
At R Available-for-sale investments 4,287,930 1,877,952
it & plg B Financial derivatives assets 79,341 22,096
JRE Wk e At 5 Receivables and other assets 414,736 290,298
FERFHHHRE Held-to-maturity investments 2,541,839 3,013,960
b Total 70,381,412 50,826,061
15 B Guarantees 1,376,135 1,192,543
F &% F P fs i@ Liabilities under letters of credit on
FRIE A AR behalf of customers 130,156 262,175
AR B R AR Undrawn loan commitments 15,701,334 8,212,710
b Total 17,207,625 9,667,428
A8 5 T B e Total credit risk exposure 87,589,037 60,493,489
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iy

(ORI S -F-3:5 Cg Tt Iob-& V&

ZER-FEFZHAZ+T—H 31 December 2010

Credit quality

(i) Distribution of gross loans and advances to

AV T customers by credit quality are summarised
as follows:
2010 2009
Wik WM W T WP W0
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
A B A AR Neither past due nor
impaired (i) 47,462,007 36,778,227
sk /RS IH  Past due or individually
JRAE impaired (ii) 254,128 354,314
st Total 47,716,135 37,132,541
()¢ AREFHE SRR - Note (i): The Group has unrated exposures for
all these loans.
(i) ¢ IEREER > B SR Note (ii): At the end of the reporting period, the

AhERERPE T EEEC 2%
B (CFRE  HRME
ST hE ) KOE A R
W=TAEEL( CEFFIE
WM =TAEHET) -

(i) R B AR W1 8%

fair value of the collateral of impaired
loans includes mortgages of MOP23
million (2009: MOP25 million) and
fixed deposits of MOP36 million (2009:
MOP36 million).

(ii)  Distribution of gross loans and advances

Vab-2 0% .2 ¢k a3 that were past due but not impaired at the
T end of the reporting period are summarised
as follows:
HRIK 360K 6190K RiK it
Less than 31-60 61-90  More than
30 days days days 90 days Total
BE2oF—F4E+TTH At 31 December 2010
Sf—H (M (MOP’000)
Fx)
% PR Rk Loans and advances to
customers 160,073 34,430 200,411
“ZRETTA At 31 December 2009
Sf—H (B (MOP’000)
Fx)
% PR Gk Loans and advances to

customers

257,599 5,305

2,977 14,939 280,820
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AR > S 1B SN 0 S5 G 4 L
EfH -

A it B EEHE T

A8 P2 WO PT 5 Z A5 i < L T By
BT 5 T 2 5 BB - S
Z A b S BRSO SRAT ARk e 3

o B KK i 2 T > AR AR A B
h e ZEORAUHMIRA B > 37 4 A
R = 70 R g B I Z AR T
fi

ARG I 2 B3 N A e [ 3% o
e ek sk JELFH DA A s R R e R o —
JReT > ACEE I AN A W Il 4 S A
EHEHE -

TR A IR o AR I i S0 O M el 2

SR v B B8

RBER > ARHRER K FZ &
ARG AR SR AL 2 17.5% 10 A7 AE
i B4 b BE LB o ACHR I 1k %k R I
A T HE A ity 40 A7k DA Dok I L i
12 7H AR 5 R B AR AR AR > B —
%P2 f5 R E BRI R = -

(d)

“EF-FFE+TH=Z+—H 31 December 2010

During the year, no financial assets of the

Group have been renegotiated.

Collaterals and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required
depends on an assessment of the credit risk of
the counterparty. The main types of collateral

obtained are bank deposits and properties.

Management monitors the market value of
collateral, requests additional collateral in
accordance with the underlying agreement,
and monitors the market value of collateral
obtained during its review of the adequacy of the

allowance for impairment losses.

It is the Group’s policy to dispose of repossessed
properties in an orderly fashion. The proceeds are
used to reduce or repay the outstanding claim. In
general, the Group does not occupy repossessed

properties for business use.

As the end of the reporting period, the Group has

no repossessed assets.

Concentration of risks

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group
has concentration risk due to credit exposure
to one single customer, which accounted for
17.5% of the Group’s loan portfolio. The
Group’s measures for mitigating the risk include
solicitation of tangible collaterals or pledged
deposits from the borrower. After taking into
account of the collaterals and pledged deposits,
the credit exposure to this particular customer

reduced to nil.
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YA A

AEEEAE M TEH MRS TR
ACEE [ BNy A R ET Z AR 5 A
A L A o e S5 PR AR S AR AR A B R
VLS 45 JU 3875 30 45 g 4 o RO R (R 4R -

AR A B OL AR o LR A IR
U0 B L5 ) L o o e 3 AR A
MERA B o T 4 15 S B S A LEM > R4
A 2 1 R R R B 2 IR B
REREARRBITEA G S - HARM
BB H B ~ R R TR A 0 1 A
3 fE A o AT BGRB8
JER o % A T R b R A AR
FERIKF-

AN o AR SR i ) T O AR T b
EEHAZ T2 BEER -

(e)

ZR-RETZHA=T—H 31 December 2010

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital
management are to ensure that the Group
complies with externally imposed capital
requirements and that the Group maintains
strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios
in order to support its business and to maximise

shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue capital
securities. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies and processes from the
previous years. The management monitors the
capital adequacy on a monthly basis, based on the
information on total capital, total risk-weighted

assets and the capital adequacy ratio.
During the year, the Group properly complied
with the externally imposed capital requirement

of a minimum capital adequacy ratio of 13%.

2010 2009

BARTE AR

Capital adequacy ratio

-!lu 14.76%
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27. IR

AR FHEEE T AORERNEFER
R I E - 3% %I H A 2 B
St £ 5 F A 2 2 Wi 5 R AT 0K~ R S
iSRRI AR AR G | o SR AR A ]
WM I 15.9 #70 B BEK - Bk pg 38 SR IR R
HH B ARG R EEIFEER R
W o AR R P S B 2 P RO R E A R
B WAk LA T 7 o T4 B A P A A G 2L
OPEEEER E-813 2 W

28. BB A

AMBEHRECOR R -—HF=ZA A KE
FE A XA

27.

28.

ZR BT ZHA=T—H 31 December 2010

Comparative Amounts

During the year, management reviewed the presentation
“provision for customer claims on credit card losses”
in the consolidated income statement and determined
that it is more appropriate to classify the item as other
operating expenses rather than charge for impairment
losses on loans, advances and trade bills as previously
disclosed. The amount was reclassified as other
operating expenses in the current year and accordingly
the comparative figure amounted to MOP159,000 was
reclassified from losses on loans, advances and trade
bills to other operating expenses to conform with the
current year’s presentation. The same amount was
reclassified from loans and advances to customers
to receivables and other assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The reclassification has
had no impact on the Group’s profit for the year and
total equity.

Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2011.
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To take up the duty to promote steadily fast economic
growth, to proactively assume the corporate
economic responsibilities, to coordinate with the
Macau government policy measures, and to push for

appropriate diversification of Macau economy.

Actively and steadily moving forward in developing its
assets, liabilities, intermediary business, and investment
banking business, the Bank draws close to the market
demand, dynamically expands its wholesale and
investment banking business such as syndicated Loan,
credit facilities secured by standby letter of credit from
ICBC branches in and outside of China, trade financing,
cross border investment banking and funds settlement,
fully supports government infrastructure facilities
and utilities projects, step by step, the Bank develops
the key local financial business such as infrastructure
facilities, hotel, tourism and trade financing, to facilitate
financing and service for local major projects and
foreign economic and trade cooperation. In 2010, ICBC
Macau gained 28.57% in total loan volume on a year-
on-year basis and managed to maintain a good quality
level for its credit assets. We witnessed a diversifying
structure of the loan industry, which effectively gave
rise to industrial restructuring, prosperity and stability

of the Macau economy.

Integrity is the lifeblood of enterprise expansion. We
abide by enterprise’s legal obligations; comply with the
business philosophy of bonding “Integrity, Stability,

and Efficiency”, and operate in accordance with law.
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ICBC Macau operates in line with the international
practices; keeps to the business principle of
marketization, abides strictly by laws and financial
regulations; and adheres to legal compliance and
integrity management. We underline internal control
and external cooperation mechanisms such as anti-
money laundering and counter-terrorism financing.
With precise work mechanism and sound operation
procedures, the Bank exercises strict control over
illegal transfer of funds through the banking system.
We persist in working on the rules and regulations,
refine business processes, focus on the education
of integrity awareness and compliance operation
consciousness, and always tighten up monitoring.
The Bank strengthens coordination and cooperation
with the financial industry, builds a healthy and
orderly market competition mechanism, works for
standard development of the banking industry, truly
defends financial security, and protects the interests
of customers. In 2010, ICBC Macau experienced no
risk events or major violations of law, keeping a good
record of safe operation.

To shape a “Green Credit” Bank in an all-round way as
a long-term development strategy, be aware of fulfilling
environmental responsibilities, and promote harmonious
development between economy and ecology in society.

We set up the core values of “Energy Saving,
Environmental Protection, Green Credit Lending”
throughout the Bank. We carry out education on energy
saving and raise the awareness of environmental
responsibility of employees. The Bank advocates for
green office. With preference on using green products,
and saves water, electricity and paper, and lowers
carbon emissions by electronization and all other
approaches, we try to bring down energy consumption
on operation. The Bank has been opening up channels
of emerging services such as electronic banking,
innovating e-service products, and expanding the scope
of e-services. This successfully reduces the dependence
of the Bank on physical locations, providing customers
with timing-saving and convenient low-carbon financial
services, and helps in conserving social and material
resources. We refine the permanent mechanism of green
credit, take into consideration customer’s environmental
protection information for credit approval, strictly
forbid entry of enterprises with high energy
consumption and pollution, and by means of financial
leverage, we support low-carbon economic growth, and
attempt to build the role model of a green credit bank.
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To start by achieving common growth between
employees and the enterprise, we love and care about

our staff, and build up responsibilities to nurture them.

ICBC Macau always follows the philosophy “people-
oriented”. We work hard to cultivate excellent
enterprise culture, explore the best staff incentive
mechanism, concern with their physical and mental
health, highly respect the protection of their rights and
interests, and largely invest in staff training, to offer a
wider developing space to employees in their career,
and encourage employees to grow with the company.
By the end of 2010, there were 547 employees, 63
people more than 2009 year end.

ICBC Macau founded its Culture and Sports
Association. We organize our staff to participate in
physical exercises and recreational activities, enriching
their leisure and cultural life. Introducing relevant
motivation policies, we encourage our staff to win
honor for the Bank. Our teams of badminton, table
tennis, basketball, soccer, dragon boat, and the like, all
formed in 2010, earned better rankings in the games
held by The Macau Association of Banks and other
organizations. The Bank rents the venues for staff to
use throughout the year. This helps to build our staff
more confidence and a sense of teamwork. Believing in
the idea of “Education flourishes business”, the Bank
has been enlarging its staff training and education
input. In 2010, ICBC Macau organized for its staff a
hundred times of different kinds of internal and external

trainings, with a total of 2,293 participants.

Having an objective of “Taking from society, giving
back to society, we serve our society”, we work for the
public good, and are aware of fulfilling the corporate

social responsibility.

ICBC Macau concerns about the nation’s economy and
people’s life. We are devoted to social welfare, propose
for the spirit of generosity, contribute to and serve the

society, and try our best to be a good corporate citizen.
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In 2010, ICBC Macau continued to carry out the
donation protocol which it entered into at the time of
its integration, agreeing to supply each of the three
institutions of higher educations being the University
of Macau, the Macau Polytechnic Institute, and Macau
University of Science and Technology, a scholarship
of 100 thousands patacas, to support the development
of the Macau’s culture and education. In response to
the earthquake, magnitude 7.1, in Yushu of Qinghai
province and the serious debris flow in Zhouqu of
Gansu province, ICBC Macau holds up the spirit
of “when one is in trouble, one gets help from all
sides”. The Bank made donations of 250 thousands
and 300 thousands patacas respectively. At the same
time, the Bank, together with the Macau Red Cross,
set up a donation account to offer free remittance
services for contributions made by the community,
completely supporting the disaster relief work. The
Bank also made donations to the Macau Tung Sin
Tong Charitable Society and the Macau Daily News’
Readers Community Chest Fund in the amount of 50
thousands and 100 thousands patacas respectively.
Also, we gathered all our staff and their families, over
six hundreds people, to take part in the 27th Macau
Walk for a Million, putting into practice our support for
the Macau charity cause, to contribute for a harmonious

society.
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Hosting the [Love Motherland, Love Macau| Badminton
Tournament, the largest badminton event in Macau

THRBRMBARMPERLDHE
A HEARKE BRI

ICBC Macau has donated funds
for the [ GanSu Province Zhou
Qu County Rain-Triggered

¢ Mud Slide| through Liaison
Office of the Central People’s
Government of Macau

T SRIE PT84 H PT A B 3R o) F 45t
wEKBER

ICBC Macau has donated
funds for the [ YuShu County
Earthquake | through Liaison
Office of the Central People’ s
Government of Macau

THRBMPERFEBE2FEE
BEBRTHAPERELEETE
RETE

ICBC Macau Men’s Team
has awarded the champion in
the Badminton Competition
of Macau Banking for 2
consecutive years

]

THRRME TEFIRE
2010 Christmas party
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THREMEAREE2010FF _ER . o s .
F3§E%T§%§E§$E?fﬁ?fﬁkéﬁ?ﬁi§ ITHREMAEIRRERBEESSF LB ZIK
FE Organizing a trip of ICBC Macau employees

ICBC Macau Dragon Boat Racing and their families to Ocean Park in Hong Kong

Team has won the champion of the
Executive Team in the 2nd Macau
Banking Dragon Boat Race

2010 Annual Dinner

‘2010$%‘<%*

2010 FZEETRE
Employee Peformance in 2010 annual dinner

THRBEMEIRFXBRBEE BRI DNE 2K
Organizing a trip of ICBC Macau employees
and their familes to Hong Kong Wetland Park
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Offices and Branches

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Macau) Limited

ICBC Tower, Macau Landmark,

555 Avenida da Amizade,Macau

Tel: 2855 5222 Facsimile: 2857 0758

ICBC (Macau) Capital Limited

19/F,ICBC Tower, Macau Landmark,

555 Avenida da Amizade,Macau

Tel: 2855 5222 Facsimile: 8398 2360

ICBC (Macau) Pension Fund Management
Company Limited

19/F,ICBC Tower, Macau Landmark,

555 Avenida da Amizade,Macau

Tel: 2855 5222 Facsimile: 2878 0678

Seng Heng Development Company Limited
13/F Guangdong Investment Tower,

148 Connaught Road Central,Hong Kong
Tel: 2165 6533 Facsimile: 2851 7266

Main Branch

Shop 008, Macau Landmark,

555 Avenida da Amizade, Macau

Tel: 8398 2885 Facsimile: 8398 2880

Dynasty Branch

Alm. Dr. Carlos d’Assumpcao, No. 393-437,
Edf. Dynasty Plaza, Macau

Tel: 8397 6102 Facsimile: 2875 5199
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WA : 8398 7236 2822 1090

Hotel Lisboa Branch
Av. da Amizade S/N Hotel Lisboa, R/C, Macau
Tel: 8398 2268 Facsimile: 2856 2536

PG (Wan Keng) Branch
351, Av. da Praia Grande, R/C, Macau
Tel: 8398 2288 Facsimile: 2833 9077

PG (Montepio) Branch

Edificio Montepio com o n° 490 da Avenida da
Praia Grande, Macau
Tel: 2871 0068 Facsimile: 2871 0066
Areia Preta Branch

Av. de Venceslau de Morais,
Kok, R/C, AD-AG, Macau
Tel: 2855 5222 Facsimile: 2853 1660

Edf. Lei Fung

Toi San Branch

Istmo de Ferreira do Amaral No. 64, Edif, Yi
Nam, R/C, Loja A-B, Macau

Tel: 2855 5222 Facsimile: 2853 1660

SML (Largo do Senado) Branch

Avenida de Almeida Ribeiro Nos 257-263, R/C,
A-B, Macau
Tel: 2838 9303 Facsimile: 2838 9220
SML (Nova Comercio) Branch

586, Av. da Almeida Ribeiro, R/C, Macau
Tel: 2855 5222 Facsimile: 2892 2440

Hung Kai Si Branch

Avenida de Horta e Costa No. 117-119,
Edificio Veng Seng, R/C “A”, Macau

Tel: 2821 6128 Facsimile: 2821 6163

Hoi Keng Tin Branch

Avenida Marginal do Lam Mau,
The Praia Shop “E”, Macau

Tel: 8398 7236 Fax: 2822 1090

Ferry Terminal Branch

Shop Unit 1005B,

1 Piso do Terminal do Porto Exterior, Macau
Tel: 2855 5222 Facsimile: 2872 6497
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— @ AR YN TRy Venetian Branch
L™ o B 9 AR Shop No. 2126, The Grand Canal Shoppes,
L R ST N A R The Venetian Macau Resort Hotel,
@i@ﬁé}ﬁ' Hoi Wan Branch T 0 2126 S Baia de Nossa Senhora de Esperanca,
TR Tk A1 B3 K S i 2 B AL Av. Dr. Sun Yat Sen, Pou Long Fa Un, W+ 2882 8212 43¢ : 2882 8378 Estrada da Cotai, Macau
R G M R/C “G”, Taipa, Macau Tel: 2882 8212 Facsimile: 2882 8378
TG : 2855 5222 fd1L : 2886 8613 Tel: 2855 5222 Facsimile: 2886 8613 @ BT @l B h
alaxy Branc|
VL™ ¢ Tk 4K B e Avenida de Cotai, Cotai City,
WM G48 il Galaxy Macau Shop G48, Macau
A : 8398 7255 M : 2882 5320 Tel: 8398 7255 Facsimile: 2882 5320
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1 B LB 39 293k Internet website: www.icbc.com.mo
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